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Financial H|ghI|ghts and Calendar
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Financial Highlights
MEHME

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HILEE

Revenue

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Total assets

Net assets

Basic earnings per share

Interim and final dividends per share
Special dividend per share

Net assets per share

|:]/[_,\

2017 2016 Change

—E—tF —E—RF HE

HK$000 HK$'000 %

FET FET B

WA 7,895,262 7,567,176 4.3
ARaIREFE A 503,827 517,982 2.7)

FE(E %

BERE 4,436,810 4,445,187 (0.2)
BEFE 3,491,120 3,541,997 (1.4)
EFRRER R HK$0.87 & 7T HK$0.90 77T (3.3)
SR EA N R HARR B HK81 cents j&fll  HK81 cents 71 -
G RIS B - HK35 cents #&11 N/A REA
SREEFE HK$5.97 % T HK$6.07 77T (1.6)

Financial Calendar

715% H ETY

Announcement of Interim Results 28 November 2016

ERZEE N —ET-RF+—AZ+/\H

Announcement of Annual Results 26 June 2017

RERERM —E—tFRAZTRH

Dividends Interim dividend: HK18 cents per share paid on 28 December 2016
Proposed final dividend: HK63 cents per share payable on 26 September 2017

s RHEARR S, BRI18EI  ERZE—REF+ZAZTNRIKN
2 REILE BlRe3BW  R=T—tFNAZ+AIRM

Annual General Meeting (“AGM") 12 September 2017

BREREFRE —tFNA+=H

Closure of Register of Members

7 September 2017 to 12 September 2017 (both days inclusive)
(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

18 September 2017

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)

E+FAALAE"Z—LFNAAT B (AEMREBEEN)
(Lxﬁ?’émﬁf“&ﬁﬂx%ﬂﬁﬁ/\&mﬁ’]ﬁﬂ)
Z—tFhATNR

(VAHETE WBUCR B B EAR)
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Chairman’s Message

+ BRI

The past year has been an eventful and productive one for all of us at Café
de Coral. In addition to achieving satisfactory performance in most of our
businesses, we completed our succession plan and laid the groundwork for
a new generation of talent.

It is gratifying to see our new management team, which is led by our
Chief Executive Officer Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, taking over the reins. The
new team has not only aligned our Company with the five-year business
plan and founders' philosophy but is also exploring new opportunities and
addressing the challenges for our business. The team has been driving and
investing in various new initiatives when we have to step outside of our
comfort zone. Yet, | have great confidence in our team’s ability to capture
new opportunities with the right strategy and at the right pace, and to take
the Company forward.

EMBRACING NEW CHALLENGES

Our three business pillars comprise our Hong Kong quick service restaurants
(QSR), Mainland operations and Hong Kong casual dining.

It is encouraging to see the satisfactory performance of our QSR business
and our team’s ability to maintain our market leadership. We have
succeeded in overcoming difficulties in Hong Kong’s increasingly competitive
food and beverage (F&B) sector by capitalising on our reputation for offering
delicious, safe and healthy dishes at affordable prices. To build on this
reservoir of goodwill, we have been enhancing the customer experience, in
particular through our Customer Journey programme during the year.

The labour shortage and long working hours in our industry have always
been key challenges for our QSR team. The multi-faceted recruitment,
development and retention strategy we implemented during the year has
helped us tackle these issues more effectively. We have also made a great
effort to enhance our employee compensation and recognition schemes,
which have made Café de Coral a much more rewarding place to work. |
should note here that the investments we made in further strengthening our
workforce during the year have had a short-term impact on the Company’s
performance but, overall, these are necessary for the long-term growth of
our business.
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In the China market, our team’s ongoing efforts to develop our brand
have begun to yield results. The F&B industry in Mainland China is highly
competitive, and customer consumption patterns are changing rapidly. To
meet the unique challenges of this market, we have developed a strategic
plan under which we have successfully consolidated our business and built
a strong local team. Our team has been working extremely hard to adapt
our menus to local customer tastes and to launch marketing campaigns
suitable for this market. As a result, we achieved positive same store sales
growth during the year, giving us a very solid foundation on which to build
momentum for our future growth.

During the past few years, the Group has been expanding our portfolio
in the casual dining sector by creating new business models and concepts
as well as refining long-established ones. The team has also responded to
difficult market conditions and severe competition by continuously fine-
tuning our brand portfolio through the consolidation of old brands and
the introduction of new brands to increase market share. It is especially
encouraging to see how much we have accomplished with Shanghai Lao
Lao and Mixian Sense, our home-grown brands, and this gives me great
hope in the team’s ability to build up our business in this sector.

COMMITTED TO SUSTAINABILITY

Since the beginning, we have focused on the needs of the mass public. We
understand our customers well, and because of this we have been able to
maintain stable growth. We also believe in treating our employees fairly
and with respect, as this not only increases staff morale but motivates them
to provide better customer service in line with our vision of operating as a
sustainable company.

As Chairman of Café de Coral, I am wholly committed to sustainability as
a way of thinking, and | am especially proud that we were included in the
Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index yet again this year.
In FY2016/17, we continued to build and strengthen our sustainability
platform across all of our operations, which is described in detail in our
Sustainability Report — the fourth since we began publishing standalone
reports. In addition to outlining our sustainability performance during
the year, the report demonstrates how we have implemented our strong
commitment to sustainability that guides the Company.
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I would like to take this opportunity to pay tribute to my late father and one
of the founders of Café de Coral, Victor Lo Tang-seong, who passed away
on 30 June 2016 at the age of 101. He was an inspiration to me and the
Company and set in place the values we continue to live by today. He will
be missed by all who knew and worked with him.

Finally, I would like to extend my appreciation to the Board whose
support | have greatly appreciated. In addition, | thank all of our staff for
their hard work, dedication and contributions to our success, as well as
our shareholders who continue to put their faith in us. With our new
management team in place, and the values that we continue to adhere to
at Café de Coral, I am highly optimistic that they will take our Company to
even greater heights.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2017
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Business Highlights

e

° The Group’s revenue for the year increased 4.3% to HK$7,895
million attributable to network expansion and brand portfolio
enhancement. Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$503.8 million, 2.7% lower than the preceding financial year or
an improvement of 1.9% if certain non-operating and non-recurring
items were excluded.

o The Group’s quick service restaurants and institutional catering
business recorded stable revenue growth. In the casual dining sector,
the Group increased market penetration with its stronger brand
portfolio. The Mainland China operations achieved satisfactory same
store sales growth and an improvement in profit margin, laying a
solid platform for sustainable growth.

o During the year under review, the Group adopted a multi-faceted
strategy to strengthen its workforce and stepped up investments
in brand and network expansion. These investments are critical
for supporting long-term business growth despite their short-term
impact on the Group’s profit growth pace.

° A final dividend of HK63 cents per share (FY2015/16: HK63 cents) is
recommended, with a total dividend payout ratio of 94.1% for the
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Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses
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A Hundred Points

of Excellence
%@ME/E%DQ

Hong Kong
Casual Dining

BEARER

10.1%

Hong Kong QSR
& Institutional Catering

EERRERREENE

i 75.6%
1.9%

Mainland China
hEIA

12.4%

Revenue Distribution
WA D

(For the year ended 31 March 2017)
(BE=Z—tF=A=1+—HLEE)

Total #8%5: 295

300 New shops . .
o5 23 No. of new shops (Since 1 April 2016): 35
250 MOEHE (B2 "FmA—H)
Total Operating Units: 458 200
Yo y=mEm
EEENAY 150
(As of 31 March 2017) Total 4524 99
(BE=F—+F=B=+-8) 100 1o
Total #£4: 64 shops
50 New shops FHE 0
ks 12
0 Hong Kong QSR & Hong Kong Casual Dining Mainland
Institutional Catering BABKEER China
EEERER hEIRh
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E A LT

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

During the year under review, the Group took proactive steps to expand
our revenue base by investing in our brand, our people and the cautious
expansion of our network. In particular, we stepped up investment in our
workforce to meet the challenge of severe labour shortage in the food
and beverage (F&B) industry, as this will help us maintain a strong and
sustainable workforce for our future development. These investments had
slowed down our profit growth pace as expected, but we believe that our
strategy of investing in the Company is critical for supporting our growth
over the long term.

We also focused on strengthening the Mainland China business and
operation during the year. In Mainland China, we achieved strong same
store sales growth, despite heavy competition in the F&B industry for space
and customers. Other challenges affecting this market included changing
consumption patterns, such as the rapid rise of e-commerce and online-to-
offline (020) deliveries to consumers who have growing expectations of
value and service. However, through our strategy of localisation, we believe
we are well positioned to continue succeeding in this market.

Our key achievements for the year included the following:

o Quick service restaurants (QSR) and institutional catering, our core
business, continued to achieve solid sales growth, attributable to the
team’s efforts to maintain and enhance our brand appeal, products
and service.

o Our operations in Mainland China achieved strong same store sales
growth during the year. We also enhanced our operational model,
which contributed to an improvement in our profit margin, and
reinforced the foundation of this business for our future growth.

o Our casual dining business saw growing popularity of its home grown
brands and continued to adjust its portfolio to meet customer demand
in preparation for trajectory growth.

o Greater investment in our people helped us to achieve long-term
sustainable growth, despite the short-term impact on operating costs
and margins.
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RESULTS OVERVIEW

The Group's results for FY2016/17 are presented as follows:

Revenue
The Group’s revenue increased 4.3% to HK$7,895 million (FY2015/16:
HK$7,567 million). The Group's revenue by business division is set out

REME
SEE-T—N/ —LHBRERZEENT :

WA
SEWAERA3%  ET8BEEETL(=F
—R/—APREE :7,567ABET) c £H

below: IWATREBED T
FY2016/17 FY2015/16
kR et = —F—h,/—~ Change
BBEE WREFE B
HKS$'m HK$'m %
BEET B &ET B17E
Hong Kong '
QSR and Institutional Catering RREFMEBHR 5,967.8 5,594.7 6.7
Casual Dining REER 794.2 709.2 12.0
Others* Eph* 154.6 144.2 7.2
Subtotal Nt 6,916.6 6,448.1 7.3
Mainland China AR B A 3 978.7 1,119.1 (12.5)
Group £H5 7,895.3 7,567.2 43
* Represents mainly income from food processing and distribution and rental income * FERBRMMIADHARBSIA

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin decreased to 13.4% (FY2015/16: 13.8%), primarily due
to the increase in manpower expenses arising from our enhancement of
compensation packages. Although this investment in our workforce had a
short-term impact on the Group’s margin, we believe this was necessary for
the long-term growth of our business.

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses slightly increased 0.1% to HK$430.6 million
(FY2015/16: HK$430.0 million).

EF=Z
EFNETKRE134%(ZF—F — T HE
€ :13.8%)  FZRAREEMREANER
ERR - EINTEIHM ELiREREY
FEMBEX  AEhEEEEREE -

ITHEHR
TN B AEMIZIN0.1% - 24306 BEET(—
T—F,/ R HPHFE  430.0EEBT) °

ARBEEBR AR -2017 FIR
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12

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
The Group's profit attributable to equity holders decreased 2.7% to

RERFE AR RER

SEREFEEABE R TE2.7% » #£503.8

HK$503.8 million (FY2015/16: HK$518.0 million). If excluding certain items ~ B&BT(ZZE—H  —"MBFE : 518.0 8
which are non-operating and non-recurring in nature as shown below, BATT) © IR T IS T IR & RIERE IR
the adjusted net profit increased 1.9% to HK$503.4 million (FY2015/16: B CHABEFENER19% @ #503.488
HK$493.8 million). BIT(ZT -8/ —<MERFE  493.88 8%
TT) e
FY2016/17 FY2015/16
—E—-x/—t —5/—~ Change
MBEE M FE BE
HK$’'m HK$'m %
BEE#ET BEET B
Profit attributable to equity holders BR#EHH A FEL =T 503.8 518.0 (2.7)
Excluding: TE1F -
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment "EYERNTE
properties Ca A,/ EE (0.4) 0.9
Gain on disposal of leasehold HEREMEEF
properties - (25.1)
Adjusted net profit RARBFRF 503.4 493.8 1.9
Segment Results pagE
Hong Kong segment results decreased 6.2% to HK$808.8 million nxﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁ%aZ% ' 3E808.8E&EBIL(Z
(FY2015/16: HK$862.1 million), mainly due to the increase in manpower ?—ﬁ/—/‘*\ﬁﬁﬂlﬁfg 18621 BEBIT) E

expense. Mainland China segment results increased 147.5% to HK$131.3
million (FY2015/16: HK$53.1 million), mainly due to strong same store sales
growth and improvement in profit margin.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group's basic earnings per share decreased 3.3% to HK$0.87
(FY2015/16: HK$0.90).

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK63 cents per share to shareholders for the financial year ended 31 March
2017 (FY2015/16: HK63 cents), representing a total dividend payout ratio of
94.1% for the year.

Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2017
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS

QSR and Institutional Catering
FY2016/17 saw continuously growing demand for fast food service in Hong
Kong as consumers became more value driven and price sensitive.

The Group remained a market leader in the QSR and institutional catering
sector. Contributing 75.6% of the Group’s total revenue for FY2016/17, the
QSR and institutional catering business in Hong Kong continued to record
solid revenue growth. Total revenue from this business division amounted
to HK$5,967.8 million, representing a 6.7% increase from the year before.
By the end of FY2016/17, our QSR and institutional catering business had
a total of 295 operating units as compared with 282 operating units in the
previous year.

By continuing to focus on our value-for-money strategy, Café de Coral
fast food achieved good same store growth in the first half of the year,
although this softened in the second half, amounting to 4% for the whole
year. Throughout the year, Café de Coral fast food developed exciting
new products that were well received by customers, further differentiating
us from our competitors. We also maintained a cautious approach with
regard to price adjustments which, together with the value for money we
offer and careful menu engineering, enabled us to sustain market share and
transaction volume.

In a softening leasing market, Café de Coral fast food took the opportunity
to expand its restaurant network and provide customers with a greater
choice of locations. During the year, Café de Coral fast food opened 10
new outlets, bringing the total number of stores operated under the brand
to 166 as of 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: 157 stores). For the year
ahead, Café de Coral fast food has a strong pipeline of new store openings
in its business development plan, with 12 stores to be opened in the coming
months.

RBo
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Super Super Congee & Noodles achieved a much expanded network
with more new stores opened. As a result of the expanded chain, it recorded
softer same store sales growth of 1% and continued to focus on network
consolidation to enhance and sustain growth. With 12 stores opened during
the year, the number of outlets under this brand amounted to 50 as of 31
March 2017, as compared with 40 stores in the previous year. 4 new stores
are scheduled to be opened in the coming months. In 2017/18, the chain
will continue to roll out the new store design created during the review
period, which features a traditional yet contemporary local neighbourhood
concept.

Our institutional catering brands maintained their leading position in the
market and made a positive contribution to the Group’s revenue during
the year. The overall performance of Asia Pacific Catering and Luncheon
Star remained strong. Asia Pacific Catering successfully retained most
of its strategic contracts under reasonable terms and secured new clients.
The number of operating units at the end of the review period was 79,
as compared with 83 in the previous year. New contract development will
remain an important task for the business in the year ahead. Luncheon
Star continued to be the largest student lunch service provider in Hong
Kong for a 12th consecutive year. During the year, our school catering arm
enhanced operational efficiency by expanding its production plant and
improving production flow. Constant efforts have also been made to provide
more tailored, flexible and popular services to the schools and students it
serves.

Casual Dining

Despite intense competition in the casual dining sector, the Group has
been committed to develop its casual dining business as this business will
increasingly contribute to the Group’s results and business development.
During the year, we further penetrated the local F&B market with a stronger
brand portfolio. We undertook brand renovation exercises, consolidated
some of our old brands and fine-tuned new brands by extending their
positions in large regional shopping malls. These combined efforts resulted
in a 12% increase in revenue as compared with the year before, reaching
HK$794.2 million in FY2016/17. The total number of shops in the casual
dining business at the end of the review period was 64, compared with 69
last year.
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Our two main home-grown casual dining brands, Shanghai Lao Lao and
Mixian Sense, recorded outstanding performance for the reporting year.
Shanghai Lao Lao has developed into a popular Chinese catering chain
operating 10 outlets as of 31 March 2017 with 4 new shops scheduled
to be opened in the near future. Mixian Sense, another promising chain
specialising in mixian noodles, achieved 12 consecutive months of double
digit growth during the year attributable to menu and product innovation.
It will continue to grow its network to increase market penetration, with 11
new store openings scheduled in the months ahead.

The Spaghetti House and Oliver’s Super Sandwiches undertook a
brand revamp during the year with updated designs and integrated menus
in order to achieve growth momentum. These two restaurant chains
operated 12 and 19 shops respectively as of 31 March 2017, as compared
with 17 and 21 shops respectively last year. THE CUP and Don Don Tei,
our franchised brands, also revamped their menus to appeal to local tastes.

Mainland China Operations

Our operations in Mainland China delivered solid results as a result of the
Group's business consolidation strategy over the past few years. In 2016/17,
we focused on enhancing the foundation of our business and refining our
products and services. In particular, we brought in a team of local managers
with extensive experience in the domestic market and deep knowledge of
local tastes. Other factors underlying the satisfactory performance of this
business included the rejuvenation of our signature products, a revamp
of our menu and a series of promotions as part of our new Customer
Relationship Management programme. New business models have also
been developed, including e-commerce and 020 deliveries, in response to
changes in consumption behaviour and higher service expectations among
our customers.

As a result of these initiatives, our fast food business in Southern China
recorded encouraging same store sales growth of 6%, despite an overall
revenue decrease of 8.7% from the year before to HK$870.6 million mainly
due to the strategic closure of non-performing stores and the impact of
the changes in the VAT rules during the year. In addition, better pricing
and labour management, improvements in supply chain efficiency and a
tax rebate due to the VAT reform under the PRC tax system all helped to
increase our operating margin for the year.
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As at the end of the year, our Mainland business operated 99 outlets,
compared with 114 last year. Looking ahead, the continuous rise in our
profit margin in Mainland China gives us a solid platform on which to
expand our business for the future. We will step up our network expansion
in Guangdong Province to achieve our objectives in this market. At the same
time, we will launch more local promotions and marketing campaigns and
develop new products that align more closely with local tastes.

KEYS TO SUCCESS

The success of Café de Coral Group is underpinned by a coordinated
strategy of investments in our people, brand, processes and network.

Investing in Our People
As of 31 March 2017, we had a workforce of 18,771 employees (31 March
2016: 17,575).

We recognise that we can only grow as a company by attracting and
retaining high quality people. Given the keen competition in the F&B
industry for labour, especially young people, we have adopted a multi-
faceted strategy that makes the Company a more attractive and rewarding
place to work. Under this strategy, we endeavour to offer competitive pay
and benefits, encourage work-life balance and provide training that enables
our staff to reach their full potential.

In 2016/17, we successfully completed our succession plan with a young
and dynamic new management team ready to take the Company
forward. In addition, we made significant enhancements to our employee
remuneration and staff wellbeing in order to improve staff recruitment
and retention in preparation for our forthcoming growth. We continued
to invest in long-term incentive programmes for our employees, including
share award and share option schemes, a profit sharing programme and
other performance incentives. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on
market benchmarks as well as individual experience, qualifications, duties
and responsibilities.

16  Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2017

EMBEER - EERAMEEORAE - =
FEA/NARE - RAREFBE A EHHF
EEREHEILR  RARERERELRER
f - KRERBNBEREREND SRS UE
BEMNTIHER - A SEEHEEES A
WHEBEME A - WERT YA AN H KA
EEfn

PRI

RIS B A T B 1 — (L S 150
EFRRATMAL - @RI - EE RIS E4
o

REAT

= — =
2 -F—

tEZA=Z+—8 #®ZMHKE
18771M&BET(= T_—\EE EJr_ :

17,575%) °

HPPABERRBEMRE AL TEEARA
Al BEREMBUEHINTRER  LE
RFEA BILRERAT ZEERE - ZH—
1BE AR5 HMim e e TS - FEERE
T BB REEBEF OINFINGE - S8

TEEEFE - URHEE THEI - SR
AR ©
EZZ—R/—tFE  SENEAGEIKY

%E —EFEEERYNEREKD EEHTE
BEMAT - ptHh - RAIBERITB THH
@HI Lﬂl?aﬂﬂ PAbnse 8 THREMATRE
RARRIER M0 6 - RPIEBRREETM
RESERIAEE  SFR0RE MK
o HirEst &l - LA&/\mflJfﬂi’%fﬁmfﬁzﬁﬁbﬁ
2 - KEMABRINHFMEFBHERETISIE)
REE . FREEAER éf&ﬁ*&;\ﬁﬁ?zm°



The Group is committed to enhance the capabilities and competitiveness of
our staff by providing quality training and career development programmes.
During the year, our “Certificate in Restaurant Management” programme
successfully attained Qualification Framework Accreditation by the HKSAR
Government, reflecting the industry’s recognition of our sustained efforts
in staff development. We strongly believe that our investment in people,
despite having a short term impact on the Group’s financial performance, is
vital to the Group’s long-term success.

Brand Building

The Group’s success is based on its strong stable of brands, starting with
Café de Coral fast food which has grown from a single small shop in 1968
into an extensive network of restaurants across Hong Kong and Southern
China. Among our major competitors in this sector, Café de Coral fast food
enjoyed the highest brand awareness, brand loyalty and market penetration,
as indicated in brand audits conducted by independent surveyor during the
year. To further enhance our brand value, we launched the “Happiness First"
brand campaign and our new 6G concept store to build on our strengths
as "“the Canteen for Hong Kong People”. We also initiated a large-scale
Customer Journey programme under which we will continue to generate a
high level of brand awareness and offer in-store experiences and customer
service that uphold our strong commitment of delivering “A Hundred Points
of Excellence”.

Building Our Network

We understand that having a wide range of strategic locations is critical
for our next phase of growth. Currently, our network covers 359 operating
units in Hong Kong and 99 outlets in Mainland China. We see the softening
leasing market as an opportune time to expand our network more
aggressively, despite keen competition for good locations. Leveraging on
the Group's core brands and multi-brand business development strategy,
we are striving to expand our restaurant network as this is crucial for our
sustainable growth and future success.
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Supply Chain Management

Maintaining food quality and consumer confidence is our top priority. The
Group's supply chain and quality assurance teams, together with our ISO
and HACCP certified processing plants, are responsible for maintaining
and monitoring sound and robust food safety management systeMs In
recent years, we have been making substantial investments to centralise
our supply chain management, including technology and system upgrades
such as our Branch Management System (BMS). This fully integrated
supply chain and inventory management system has automated our raw
material procurement process for greater efficiency, traceability, inventory
management and food safety.

Sustainability

We were honoured to be included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index for a second consecutive year. Sustainability is the core
value of our Group and guides us in the way we do business. Covering four
aspects, our sustainability commitment includes Total Customer Satisfaction,
Focus on People, Investing in Community and Resource Optimisation,
all of which have been embedded in our operations. Our sustainability
performance for the year is set out in greater detail in our standalone 2017
Sustainability Report — the fourth since we began reporting.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

The Group's financial position for FY2016/17 remained healthy. As of 31
March 2017, the Group recorded net cash of approximately HK$790 million,
with HK$306 million in available banking facilities. The Group's current ratio
as of the same date was 1.5 (31 March 2016: 2.1), and the cash ratio was
1.0 (31 March 2016: 1.5). The Group had no external borrowing (31 March
2016: nil) and a nil gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowing less cash and cash
equivalents to total equity) (31 March 2016: nil). There has been no material
change in contingent liabilities or charge on assets since 31 March 2017.
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The Group’s return on equity for FY2016/17 was 14% (FY2015/16: 15%),
and return on assets was 11% (FY2015/16: 12%).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year, the Group’s capital expenditure was HK$595 million
(FY2015/16: HK$366 million). As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s
outstanding capital commitments were HK$613 million (31 March 2016:
HK$481 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2017, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$415 million (31 March 2016: HK$516 million) to financial institutions in
connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
while those of our Mainland China business were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.

OUTLOOK

Our performance during the year gave new impetus to our expansion.
Although operating conditions in the F&B industry will continue to be
challenging under weak market sentiments and intensifying competition,
we are cautiously optimistic about the future and are fully confident in our
ability to build our brand and achieve long-term sustainable growth.

In the year ahead, we believe the market in Hong Kong will continue to be
highly competitive for talent and space. We will maintain our investments
in people, although this may impact our margins, albeit at a more modest
level. On the other hand, we anticipate food costs to remain mostly stable
as a result of our efforts to purchase directly from source, and expect
to capitalise on a slightly softer leasing market for our future branch
development. Despite higher short-term costs arising from our investments
in people and capital expenditure for our stores and system enhancements,
we are confident in our ability to regain momentum on the path to
improving our margins in the near future.
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For our QSR business, we believe demand will remain strong for our
products and services, and are confident that with new store openings,
stronger supply chain management and menu engineering we will be able
to deliver stronger results. We will maintain a cautious and vigilant pricing
strategy and continue to focus on creating value for our customers and a
sustainable business operation.

The Group is also optimistic about the casual dining business and remains
determined to increase market share in this sector. We will continue to fine-
tune our brand portfolio and invest in our emerging chains so that they can
make a greater contribution to the Group’s business growth strategy.

Although competition is likely to remain keen in Mainland China, we are
optimistic about our prospects in the country, where we have a long history
and a strong foundation. This will involve building our brand presence in
strategic locations of core cities in Southern China, increasing our brand
penetration in second and third tier cities, enhancing brand loyalty and
winning over new customers.

Finally, we look forward to the continued support of our loyal customers,
dedicated staff, shareholders and other stakeholders as the Group embarks
on its next phase of growth.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEEZENEREEAE

Non-executive Directors

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 61, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. He also serves as a director for a
few subsidiaries of the Company. As Chairman, Mr Lo is mainly responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, a Director of the Company.
He is also a relative of Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan and Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are Directors of the Company. He is
a director of Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited and Victor Reach Investments
Limited, each of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 64, joined the Group in 1982 and was an
Executive Director of the Company from 1990 until her re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in September 2016. She has more than 30 years
of experience in the fast food industry. Ms Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, a Director of the Company.
Ms Lo is also a relative of Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan and
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are Directors of the Company.

FHITES

3

BRAXEE ST ARREELREA
ZEEKEB - BLEER—NWNZFNALXE
B NANEFREARTES  BE-T
—NFEHARERIFERTES - BRIt
F+-AZE T —FZAHAARRRITHAE
H IR —FNAE=T— R F=AK
FEFEHITE - BARARARETHERARZ
EEL-EAFRE BALEFTZRETAEARER
EEREE URRESRENEELTH
TEER BAERBLABAS(ETIZE
TEf o

BAEDARREFTREBEL LT 2% BITA
RARIEEEEALEE - BRAKERRE
Yt 5 & 2 B o 1% A& Ardley Enterprises (PTC)
Limited % Victor Reach Investments Limited 2 &
£ ZERADRFEREBEESF RBAEKLZE
XV E07B T #R58 2 ANA R s o

BEBLLT  NTOK R—ANZFIMAKR
S8 B NMNEFEETARRARTESE
BEET-RFAARERINITES - E
RETEBEA=THER - BRIBEEL

REHENBELT M -

BEETDANRBESERANALEEZY - BT
RABIERREASLE  BRAFERRDS
FE B

ARBEEBR AR -2017 Fi 21



22

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 65, joined the Group in 1984
and was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led
the Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the
Executive Chairman from 1997 to 2012. Mr Chan was re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the
Company in the capacity of Non-executive Director from April 2012 to
March 2016. Having worked as a professional town planner for various
Government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has considerable
experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a Degree in
Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a council member and
the Chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong
Kong Management Association, the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services
Association and an Adjunct Professor of Hang Seng Management College.
Mr Chan is also appointed by the HKSAR Government as a member of the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee of the Financial Secretary’s Office.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of

Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup

Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science

and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter,

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan and Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, all of whom are Directors
of the Company.
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Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 63, joined the Group in 1984 and has
been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong and
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in
the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael, BBS, JP, aged 59, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr Choi is a Director and Senior Vice-President
of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. He has been in the real
estate industry for over 36 years with extensive knowledge and experience
in the real estate markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently, he
is the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a co-opted
member of Haven of Hope Christian Service, a member of Non-subvented
Service Governing Committee of Haven of Hope Christian Service, a
member of School of Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist
University and a member of the Advisory Board on Business Studies of the
Lingnan University. Mr Choi graduated from the Business Management
Department of the Hong Kong Baptist College and obtained a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital markets.
He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited,
Kowloon Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company
Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited. The shares of all these
companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr Li has a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Civil Engineering

from Brown University.
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 61, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan, Solicitors. He is also qualified to practise as a solicitor
in Australia, England and Wales and Singapore. Mr Kwok is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’s
Degrees in Economics and Laws respectively and a Master’s Degree in Laws.
He also obtained the Advanced Management Program Diploma from the
Harvard Business School.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since January 2013 and is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr Au is the Special Advisor of BDO Limited, the Hong Kong
member firm of BDO International Limited. He has more than 40 years of
experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au was the President of the
Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants from
December 2007 to December 2008. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. Mr Au is currently a non-executive
director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Deputy Chairman of
Budget Committee, member of the SFC (HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Investment Committee of The Securities and
Futures Commission, the Chairman of the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee and a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption. He is also the Chairman of
Professional Services Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, an independent non-executive director of the Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited and the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Coalition of Professional Services Limited.
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Executive Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo
joined the Group in 1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998.
Mr Lo was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in September 2015 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since April
2016. During the past two decades, Mr Lo has performed key functions
within the Group and led various major projects for the growth and
development of the Group’s business and operations. As the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, Mr Lo leads the overall management and strategic
planning and development of the Group’s businesses and operations. Mr
Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the
Loughborough University of Technology, a Master's Degree in Medical
Physics from the University of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan,
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

HITES

BEHITE

BEASLE A TOHRE ARRIEEHTE -
WARAARTBZEMBARZEE - BRER
—NANREMAREER - WE—NNNFRHE
FRITEF - BEER_ZT—RAFNABEE
RERNFEIERHTE  TBE_ZE—RFOA
RETEENITE - BEAEEBE_TFRRAK
SERTHRERE  EEZEXEEE  FE
REBEBREEZEBRNER - EREART
BENTE BEEAETELASE ERE
BUREBREBEZRBEREIRER - BLE
#5 A Loughborough University of Technology &
T TFRELE(7 - University of Surrey & 2412
B2 RBAAREEYBEL2ULES
E@NE-E S

BA AR AR BDEEREERATZERG
EF ERGREBBARSFARATLR
b

BEEDARBIEZTER AL A BEBE
EE BEBULITLRBRBAETEZEE-
7 % 4+ BWandels Investment Limited
Verdant Success Holdings Limited Az Sky Bright
International Limited 2 &% » 25 AR5 B
ERBEIRFLIEROIEXVEAETIREZ AR
AR RS ©

ARBEEBRAR -2017 Ff 25



Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 43, is an Executive Director and a member
of the Nomination Committee. He also serves as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director of the
Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director in
March 2016. Mr Lo is in charge of property and branch development,
project and facilities management, quantity surveying and business analysis
of the Group. He had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager
(Food Manufacturing) of the Group during the period from November
2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts, specialist in
Economics from University of Toronto and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter,
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are
Directors of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr Lau Tat Man, Daren, aged 48, joined the Group in March 2015 and is
the Managing Director (Quick Service Restaurants Group) of the Group. He
also serves as a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau is
responsible for overall operation and business development of Hong Kong
fast food, institutional catering, school catering and other quick service
restaurant business of Hong Kong region. Mr Lau has extensive professional
experience in food and beverage industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr
Lau had held senior management positions with a leading global food and
beverage services and solutions provider. Mr Lau holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and was
placed on the Dean’s list.

Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 47, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (China) of the Group. He is responsible for the long
term strategic planning, business operation and market development of
the Group's catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. Mr Yang
has over 20 years of rich management experience gained from various
international corporations where he was responsible for leading corporate
strategic business development, formulating operation direction and
expanding business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds Master's Degree
in Business Administration from Kellogg Business School, Northwestern
University and Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr Lam Ming Fung, David, aged 48, joined the Group in April 2015
and is the Senior General Manager (Casual Dining) of the Group. He also
serves as a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lam is
responsible for leading the overall management and development of the
specialty restaurants and casual dining businesses in Hong Kong. Mr Lam
has extensive experience in business management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Lam had worked for renowned organisation and international
retail group responsible for strategic business development, operation
management, marketing and product development and customer
management. Mr Lam holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from University of Leicester.

Mr Ng Tsz Chiu, Ivan, aged 46, joined the Group in October 2013 and is
the General Manager (Supply Chain) of the Group. Mr Ng is responsible for
management and development of strategic procurement and supply chain
of the Group’s operation in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as
overseeing the operation of the Group's central food processing centres. Mr
Ng has extensive experience in procurement management and has worked
for leading retail and international product distribution and manufacturing
groups where he was responsible for various strategic commercial and
technical procurements. Mr Ng holds a Bachelor's Degree of Business from
Queensland University of Technology in Australia.

Mr Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 53, joined the Group in January 2011 as
Chief Financial Officer. He also serves as a director of several subsidiaries of
the Company. With extensive experience in general management, corporate
finance and financial control all gained from top management positions
held in renowned corporations and firms, Mr Lim is responsible for the
overall oversight of the Group’s financial planning and strategy as well as
headquarters management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lim held various
general management positions and directorships in listed and private
conglomerates with operations spanning key international markets since
1990. Mr Lim holds an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

PEELRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management  ARREER([EEH|) LEBBR NGRS
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive ~ KFZEEE  WAEE HERESERIA
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding EHREBEATENER EERERREALRA
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the AR ([RER]) MR EEE - UERAEE
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group. ZREAIREER -

Shareholders &
Stakeholders

RERRFHE
Sustainability & Business
Growth Development
AHEERRIER Board & Board AR
Committees
o° EERKREER Fe
° — °
o. E—Féﬁg '.
People & Planning Control & Audit
ANERKHE BEPR R
Management Board
.o %ﬁ% '.
° L]
0. ...
Risk Management Gi)?/reﬁ(r)];ar:se
[ TR P
Corporate S
000000 OCO Management 00000 OOS
RERER

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code  EBFH¥ER<FH

=)
The Group’s corporate governance framework and practices adhere to the ~ AHZBEZ BEEBIER R BRI EHIINES
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) setout in  EtE R SABMR AR ([ BB EH LT
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing ~ #2BI([ =/ 811) i8¢+ 10z ¥ E)a<r 8l

Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong  ([1EE/AFAI]) 2 RA| - REZ T —+4F
Stock Exchange”). For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company =—A=1t—RHIFE ARARIEETFTHELE
complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and adopted the = EJAFAIANZ 5B JMX WA KR AI1T 2 1B

NZ5F
recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they are relevant i NERMABEE AT ZERZETR -

and practicable.

BEVNHARELEERERT ZERER -

B

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework are set
out in this report.
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Directors
The Board

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita ot

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Note: Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita has been re-designated as Non-executive Director with effect from 9
September 2016.

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 27
of the Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development of
the Group. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are required,
external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the Directors at
the Company’s expenses.
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All Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care, skill and diligence.
Comprehensive directors and officers liability insurance coverage is in
place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and senior
management.

The Directors conduct periodically evaluation of the performance of the
Board to identify areas of improvement with a view to enhancing the board
effectiveness and corporate governance.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by
the Board (“Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board's
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies,
and monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations as well as the operating and financial results of the Group’s
businesses against plans and budget.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

The Board and Management

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board, the roles
and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Management Board.

The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders regarding
management of the Group in addition to those powers and authorities
conferred upon it under the Bye-laws of the Company (”Bye-laws”). The
role of the Board is to provide overall strategic direction for the Group and
effective oversight of management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule
of matters reserved to the Board which mainly include the following:

e Approval of strategic direction and related objectives of the Group;

o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

o Approval of Company’s announcements, circular and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports; and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.
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32

The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board
is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include all the
Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior
executives of the Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and
agreed by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions are given
as to the limits of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report to the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. Principal functions
that are delegated by the Board to the Management Board include the
following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy and
objectives;

e Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within the
limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning of
executives; and

o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient
and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.

The Board reviews its delegation of responsibilities to the Management

Board from time to time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need
of the Group and its business.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, (i) any Director who is appointed to fill a casual vacancy is subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment;
and (ii) all Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and are eligible for re-election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction & Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations, business
and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the
responsibilities as a director under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates and
presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes to the
statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’ discharge
of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and briefing
sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with the
Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory and
compliance requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous improvement
programmes held by external bodies at the expense of the Company. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record on
a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set out
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Non-executive Directors EMITES

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) ERNSE(EE) a, e

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEEZL a, e

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BR¥E NS a,b,de

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFREES A a, e

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRITES

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael FOEM A a,cde

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEESE a,cde

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry FHME L& a,b,cde

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert &M A& ace

Executive Directors WITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer) BIEASL A (BEHITE) a, e

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan EEASE a, e

Note: Training relating to (a) corporate governance; (b) legal and regulatory update; (c) accounting/
finance and business management; (d) risk management; and (e) business development update
of the Group

Board Committees

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties, including the support of management and engagement
of independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. The
Committees report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations and
maintain an effective and constructive communication with the Board.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing at least
annually the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Board adopts a Board Diversity Policy which aims to build and maintain
diversity of the Board in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural
and educational background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and
strengths that are required for the Company’s business from time to time.
The policy stipulates that Board appointments are made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective selection criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is delegated by the Board to review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis, make recommendations to the Board on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor
the progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

e the structure, size and composition of the Board;

o independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and

o re-election of Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 9 September 2016.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following three
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group's policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management of
the Company. The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and the prevailing
market conditions. Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to align
with the long-term interest of the Company with significant proportion of
remuneration linked to corporate and individual performance.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

° remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior
management; and

o grant of share awards under the Company’s Share Award Scheme.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following four Independent
Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems and corporate governance
functions.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations

were made to the Board where appropriate:

o independence of the external auditor and engagement of external
auditor;

o audit findings by external auditor and the related management
responses as well as development in accounting standards and its

effects on the Group;

° annual and interim financial statements and the related results
announcements;

o adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial

reporting and internal audit functions;

o internal audit plan, risk management and internal control performance
as well as the effectiveness of the internal control system;

e the Group’s continuing connected transactions;

e  food safety improvement program;

o information security management project;

o directors’ and officers’ liability insurance; and

o corporate governance practices, compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

The Board held four scheduled meetings at approximately quarterly intervals
during the year.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled a year ahead to facilitate maximum
attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at least 14 clear calendar
days are given in respect of regular meetings. For special Board or Board
Committee meetings, reasonable notices are given. Arrangement is in place
to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda for regular meetings.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of
minutes were sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings.
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Attendance records of the Directors at Board Meetings, Board Committee ~ SEEREHE_T—+F-_A=1+—HILFE
Meetings and Annual General Meeting held during the year ended 31 BIIEERER EFRENLZEFgRK
March 2017 are set out below: REBEFAG 2 HRLHEEHIOT

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

FRHE BHEZERRH
Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BEER REZEE ¥MEES BENEES REREF
= = a8 a5 VN
Non-executive Directors FENTES
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BFRLEE 4/4 7 N/A i A N/A i A 1”1
(Chairman) (£/E)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBELL 4/4 N/A N6 N/A N6 N/A i m”m
Mr Chan Yue Kwong Michael BRIA S A 4/4 N/A i N/ATEF N/ATER 171
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel RIS A 4/4 N/A 5 B N/A N B N/A R 11
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EEREAE 4/4 11 2/2 4/4 11
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEELE 4/4 11 2/2 4/4 1
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry BHELE 4/4 7 2/2 4/4 0/1
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BREA LA 4/4 N/A 4 N/A i B 4/4 11
Executive Directors WITES
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter EIEALE 4/4 N/A T A N/A T A N/A T3 A 11
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHITE)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BaAEE 4/4 11 N/ATNEF N/ANER 171
Accountability and Audit BERZE
Financial Reporting B TS B R

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group's ~ EFHERKEA B EREAREE 2 FHEHRE
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs AE B IEH 2 B AN 52 B A PE SR HA R 2 7
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.  #AJLLA R ZE4E IR REIRN - ERRHAER
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and ~ ZB{EH F& - JGHT & H IR H) T8 B (T#E A
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to REERHHRE  MEEERIZRE B
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under & E MR RIAR T8 T E 2 Hib A& & # LB
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuantto &R - U RRIBEDIRER T WE 2 EHL -
statutory requirements.

ARBEEBR AR -2017 Fft 39



Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the

Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor

A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities
is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to 77 of the
Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

EREESNEERREETEEREERR
EH RREFUREXTEERIEY BK
RE A ERHE TS - R EE T BT
KRFZBBEBAS - LMELEHRERE
—HER -

SIS R BHED
SN B S8 % 2 R R (AR 2 RS
RARRA - E—FRECIZTTEZBUZ
BENHR A 9 -

REBFA - NABZEENE R GES
SHEMESAZ Bl #ImT

Fee paid/payable

Type of services R%EE Bt ENER

HK$'000

FET

Audit services ZERTE 3,829

Non-audit services* IEZHARTS 409

Total st 4,238
* The non-audit services include mainly advisory services on taxation. * YR EZOREEBMBNGZ AR -

Risk Management and Internal Control

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is
pivotal to the fulfillment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-
term sustainable growth. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility
for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control framework.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management system is aligned with the internal control
framework of international body consisting of the five elements, namely,
the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication, and monitoring. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group and can provide
reasonable, but no absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The systems are made of by two essential features, the risk governance
structure and process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group’s risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM") policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines roles and responsibilities of each
of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, the Audit
Committee, Management Board, department heads, operational level and
internal audit.

Risk Management Process — The Group’s ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The key process
of the Group's ERM is illustrated below:

Risk Identification

B IR AE LR
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Annual Review .
Risk Assessment
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Conduct annual review on the
effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems
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Risk Reporting
2 B B R

Submit risk monitoring and

management information on a regular

basis using “Red Flag Templates” and

“Risk Reporting Templates”

FRER TREEREA | & [ARER

A EER R R R EIE R BB E R
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Risk Monitoring
[ B B 4
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Evaluate and prioritise the risks
at least annually
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Risk Response
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Formulate risk mitigation plan for the
significant risks identified
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Define risk indicators and set acceptable
indicator levels for monitoring the

ARBEEBR AR -2017 FIR

41



42

The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. Risks that are relevant to the
Group's business are identified, assessed and ranked according to their
likelihood, financial consequence and reputational impact on the Group. The
ERM system uses risk indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks
identified. Risk owners are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation
plan promptly and regular risk reports are presented to the Management
Board and Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The
key risks identified, managed and monitored during the year included
management succession, brand management, business development, food
safety, site acquisition and retention as well as supply chain management.
Action plans were formulated and implemented during the year to address
the areas of concern effectively.

With assistance of external consultant under a co-sourcing arrangement,
the Internal Audit Department and the external consultant have risk
management and internal control reviews covering operational, financial
and compliance controls of the Group. The Group’s internal audit function
reports directly to the Audit Committee. It carries out independent reviews
of key business processes and controls in accordance with its annual audit
plan approved by the Audit Committee. The head of internal audit has
regular meetings with the Audit Committee to report the key findings and
recommendations for improvement of audit issues.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2017. Heads of key business units and
functional departments are required to confirm the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board has received a confirmation from the Management
Board on the effectiveness of the systems and no significant areas of
concern have been identified and considered the systems effective and
adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting function.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place to
provide guidance to our employees and business partners who may, from
time to time, feel that they need to raise certain issues relating to the Group
in confidence and to ensure that they can raise any matters of genuine
concern, in the knowledge that they will be taken seriously and that the
matters will be investigated appropriately and regarded as confidential.

Under the Group’s Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation,
employees and business partners may raise their concern by sending their
malpractice reports to the Head of Internal Audit who reports directly to the
Audit Committee on receipt and investigation of malpractice reports. For
malpractice reports concerning the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and/or any members of the Management Board, informants may
make direct reports to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company,
the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.
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Inside Information

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Group’s Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines and
procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure Team
comprising Executive Directors and members of senior management have
the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information reported
is inside information and require disclosure and refer the subject matter to
the Board for decision. Measures are in place to preserve the confidentiality
of inside information and to ensure that its recipients recognise their
obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating with external
parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to enquiries in
allocated areas of issues. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to
facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and keep Shareholders
informed of balanced and understandable information about the Company
in a factual and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company’s open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers,
analysts and the media through effective corporate communication system
covering various communication channels including shareholders’ meetings,
corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 9 September
2016, the Chairman of the Board and other Board members, including
Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as the external auditor were present to
communicate with Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the
proposed resolutions were explained at the meeting by the Chairman.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were
properly counted and the poll results were published on both the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company's head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at the general meetings.

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company regularly meets with institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media, provide update on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company has
regularly participated in investor summits, conferences and corporate days
to enhance communication with the investment community. Investors
are welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Office at
ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for latest update
information of the Group.

Major investor relations activities participated by the Company during the
year are set out below:

Activities

TEE

Citi Hong Kong and China Corporate Day
TEEER HECERTE

DBS Vickers Corporate Day
ERWSEREH

Jefferies 6th Annual Greater China Summit
BHEWENERAPERIES

Jefferies Corporate Day
HEmTER

Morgan Stanley 7th Annual Hong Kong Investor Summit
BERTANELETEREEES

The Company also conducts regular meetings with institutional investors
and financial analysts updating the Company’s business performance
and future directions. List of investment banks/organisations that provide
research coverage for the Company can be obtained at the Company’s
website.
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Directors’ Report

E=RmE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in the operation of quick service restaurants and
institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as food processing and
distribution in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

As set out in the Chairman’s Message and Management Discussion and
Analysis in the Company’s 2017 Annual Report, the Group took proactive
steps to expand its revenue base by investing its brand, people and cautious
expansion of its network in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group’s
quick service restaurants and institutional catering business recorded
stable revenue growth. In the casual dining sector, the Group increased
market penetration with its stronger brand portfolio. The Mainland
China operations achieved satisfactory same store sales growth and an
improvement in profit margin, laying a solid platform for sustainable
growth. During the year under review, the Group adopted a multi-faceted
strategy to strengthen its workforce and stepped up investments in brand
and network expansion. These investments are critical for supporting long-
term business growth despite their short-term impact on the Group’s profit
growth pace. The Chairman’s Message and the Management Discussion
and Analysis also provide an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, discussion on principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
as well as business development outlook of the Group.

Together with the 2017 Annual Report, the Company publishes its
fourth Sustainability Report which discloses the Group’s sustainability
performance for the year ended 31 March 2017 in four key areas, namely,
Total Customer Satisfaction, Focus on People, Investing in Community and
Resource Optimisation. The report also discusses in detail the Company’s
environmental policies and performance as well as our relationship and
continuous engagement through various channels with our customers,
employees, suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a significant
impact on the Group.
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Business Review (Continued)

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business and
operations are set out in the 2017 Sustainability Report and the Corporate
Governance Report in the 2017 Annual Report.

Results and Appropriations

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 80 of the Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK18 cents per share was paid. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK63 cents
per share, totaling approximately HK$368,762,000 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
18 September 2017. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to be held on 12 September 2017. Details of dividends for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2017, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$626,747,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

Principal Investment Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set out
on page 197 of the Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$791,000.
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Share Capital

During the year, 1,617,000 new shares of the Company were issued on
exercise of share options under the Company’s share option schemes. Details
of the movements of share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 20 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 198 to 200 of the Company’s
2017 Annual Report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2017, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed
securities, except that the trustee of the Company’s Share Award Scheme
purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) a total of 700,046 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$17.1 million to satisfy the award of shares to
selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of
the Share Award Scheme.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Other than the share option schemes described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2017. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita (Re-designated as Non-executive Director
on 9 September 2016)

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

(Chief Executive Officer)

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry has served the Board as an Independent Non-
executive Director since 2004. Mr Kwok has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Notwithstanding
the length of Mr Kwok's tenure, the Board is satisfied that, taking into
account, inter alia, the valuable independent judgment, advice and objective
views contributed by Mr Kwok over the years, Mr Kwok is of such character,
integrity and experience commensurate with office of independent non-
executive director. The Board is not aware of any circumstances that might
influence the independence of Mr Kwok.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contracts that is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 March 2017 or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the financial year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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52

Share Option Schemes

2003 Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24

September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company might grant options

to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The Company had

granted options to certain employees of the Group (including Executive

Directors of the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. Summary of the

2003 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Employees (whether full-time or part-
time), executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group

805,000 ordinary shares representing
0.14% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2003 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, a period of five years
commencing on the date on which an
option becomes exercisable and expiring
on the last day of the five-year period
save that such period shall not expire
later than ten years from the date of
grant

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, there is no general
requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be
exercised

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2003 Scheme expired on
24 September 2013

R p HARERT 8l (&)
F5HE (&)

—sE=
BB R0 B
%2 HR

TEROBENASR
ZBRIKAAR

ARG R RN
ZEH

THREZEEREE

ot 8z MR 1

RRESE

FRIFER X =B
B IR Bk
fERSTRITTE A A HA e
Z AREESF - IR
ZERFRE—AE
m o MEZFHTEE
B E A

FRIERBX MR AR
B I —RRE IR
D AN ETTERT 2
RIEFA IR

1.0087T

$ﬁ%®%ﬁﬁ5%
(AREFEB)AR
kf&%%%“%!
B $RERFTE ™
B (i) BRE L AH
CIERElE JSRAN]
BRI BB &
BREXRAEZFH
Yo &« Ri)Aa
BAIlRMEE  K&&
ERE

—EE=FHEE
R-Z—=%hA
— 4 B EE

EABR AT -2017 F3 53



Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no
share options had been granted by the Company under the 2012 Scheme.
Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Participants Employees, executive directors, non-

executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, suppliers
and customers of the Group and
consultants, advisers, managers, officers
and corporations that provide research,
development or other technical support
to the Group
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Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
9.77% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when the
right to exercise the option in respect of
all or some of the shares the subject of
the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme

i {0 Hi et 8l ()

—E-CFEEE)

RSB RERAREESE

®BH 2R AR FAEEAZH
e - AT mE
ERIBE-F——F
MBI GRENE
B MR R (LA
R T BB
AEIEs 4

TEROGHBENRZE HESREERT

ZBRIKAAR AR AD HARE P SR
DR ITE RN 2
R 57 8 - s ]
HAPR

BRI REREAT 1.008 7T
ke

THREZEEREE MER ()R B A
(ARZEER)ARRAT
B EE BB RS
HRERE U
B (i) BRE L AH
CIERElE JSRAN]
BRI BB &
HRERE 2 F1T
Yo &« Ri)Aa
BAIlRMEE  K&&
ERE

T8 FIghER BRIEBIE—_T——4F
TRl Z G BT8R IE
BN —T——FE
NS E T - —

FHATHE

ARBEEBRAR -2017 Fi 55



Share Option Schemes (Continued) IR HAREST &I (48)

Movement of Share Options Granted 2R ER D2
Details of movements of the share options granted under the 2003 Scheme BE_Z—+tF=ZA=+—HILFE &=F
during the year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows: ToFREERHC RO BEEHFBELT -
Number of options®
ROEBEHE@
Exercise
price per Outstanding Outstanding
option at 1 April at 31 March
SHRH 2016 Exercised Lapsed 2017
Date of BRTREE Exercise RZZ—-<F during during R=Z—tF
Grantees grant HK$ period MA—H the year theyear =fA=+-H
SN REAH BT Cagid e RATHE ERfTE EREM i ARATHE

Director & substantial shareholder

EERTERR
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 2/10/2007 © 14.268 30/3/2008- 450,000 (450,000) @ - -
EREEAE 29/3/2017
Director
Bx
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 2/10/2007 ® 14.268 30/3/2008- 133,500 (133,500) ™ - -
BEBERLT 29/3/2017
Continuous contract employees 2/10/2007 © 14.748 30/3/2008- 707,500 (707,500) @ - -
EEENESR 29/3/2017
2/10/2007 @ 14,748 30/3/2009- 76,000 (41,000) - 35,000
1/10/2017
28/10/2010© 22370 31/3/2011- 1,077,000 (163,000) 0 - 914,000
30/3/2020
28/10/2010 22.370 31/3/2012- 136,000 (122,000) 0 - 14,000
27/10/2020
2,580,000 (1,617,000) - 963,000
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

@)

Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of the Company covered by the
options under the 2003 Scheme.

These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30 March 2008, 15% on 30 March
2009, 20% on 30 March 2010, 25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012 and
were exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of vesting.

These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30 March 2008, 15% on 30 March
2009, 20% on 30 March 2010, 25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012 and
were exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of vesting.

These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 30 March 2009, 15% on 30 March
2010, 20% on 30 March 2011, 25% on 30 March 2012 and 30% on 30 March 2013. The
first four tranches were or are exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective
dates of vesting. The last tranche is exercisable from 30 March 2013 to 1 October 2017.

These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31 March 2011, 15% on 31 March
2012, 20% on 31 March 2013, 25% on 31 March 2014 and 30% on 31 March 2015 and
were or are exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of vesting.

These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31 March 2012, 15% on 31 March
2013, 20% on 31 March 2014, 25% on 31 March 2015 and 30% on 31 March 2016. The
first four tranches are exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of
vesting. The last tranche is exercisable from 31 March 2016 to 27 October 2020.

In respect of the category of “Director & substantial shareholder”, the closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$27.4.

In respect of the category of “Director”, the closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were exercised was HK$26.3.

In respect of the category of “Continuous contract employees”, the weighted average closing
price of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised was HK$25.6.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or

cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Share Award Scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), under which any
individual being an existing director, employee, officer, supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser or manager of any member of the Group is entitled
to participate in as selected participant who may be granted an award of
restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period commencing
on the Adoption Date and ending on the day immediately prior to the
10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or
incentive package in order to attract and retain talent for the development
of the Group’s business, and to promote long term success of the Group by
aligning the interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15
years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time.
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Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, restricted shares and performance
shares were awarded to selected participants pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme. Details of the shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
during the year were as follows:

Bt BT E (&)
REE-T—LE=A=T—ALFE A2
AR BB M B AETE 2 REE TR
FERRAD R SRS « RIRAR(D SRS BIE 2
RONERZBHHENT

Number of shares

RGEAR
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
2016 during during during 2017 Vesting
Date of grant R-Z—XRF the year the year theyear R=-Z—tF period
R HH MA—H REANRH RERNER RERXY =A=+—H o)
31/7/2014 490,284 - (250,915) (35,240) 204,129 31/7/2015 -
31/7/2017@
15/9/2014 3,034,703 - - (1,192,983) 1,841,720 7/2019®
31/7/2015 877,047 - (293,806) (95,251) 487,990 31/7/2016 -
31/7/2018@
31/7/2015 501,015 - - (58,350) 442,665 7/2019®
1/8/2016 - 1,126,780 - (61,679) 1,065,101 31/7/2017 -
31/7/2019@
1/8/2016 - 731,103@ - (6,906) 724,197 7/2019®
4,903,049 1,857,883 (544,721) (1,450,409) 4,765,802

Notes:

(a) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the awarded shares
respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance
of the remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case
such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day
immediately thereafter.

(b) The awarded shares are subject to attainment of performance targets with reference to the
Group's performance.

© During the year, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, and
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all being Directors of the Company, have participated in the Share
Award Scheme.

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 8,145,354 shares had been awarded
under the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 1.39% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2017.

BiGE

(a) HEBROHBRUISEE EXRERPRAE—ERFAR
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and ZEZERFTEITHAERRKR®G - 1HE
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares R REFTHZEBZRAXR
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2017, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive E/\\\:%ﬁ—tﬁzﬂ =t+—B8 ' NARIREES
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of G R0I(T 38 5 R BRE %01 1) 38 352 {5 T
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part f“Z%ﬁEEﬂﬂFﬁﬁEf? » SARTR T AR BB 8+
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the ez FTARERHEITESFR FHHIZLESTH|
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO oras  ([TRZESFAIL) BTG AR E] R BB -
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange ~ AR RIEEERBFHMITERA R A & E iEH
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed ~— J&E (3258 %5 & BB R PIE XV E 2 B ) 2 &
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were 7 ~ fHEAIR M R EH 2 =S T -

as follows:
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
FATREER HERGEE (FR)
% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Personal Family  Corporate Other derivatives Total HE BT
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests & interests M1 4858
Ex=pgs BARER RikfER NERER HiiEz PTETIAR EREE ZBED*
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - - 40,383,394@ - 63,833,894 10.908%
BRI EE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000 ® - 17,039,928 2.912%
BEBELT

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500 - - 17,033,907 2911%

RS
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837 0.004%
ARERE
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000 @ - - - - 55,000 0.009%
TR E LA
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 436,734 - - 89,308,213 504,833 90,249,780 15.423%
BiEASSE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 40,000 - - - 149,826 189,826 0.032%
BaERE
* The percentage has been calculated based on 585,178,033 shares in issue as at 31 March * BALDER_ZE—+EF=ZA=Z+—-HEHEITRG
2017. 585,178,033 x5t &
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (Continued)

Notes:

(@) As of 31 March 2017, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in these shares
of which 37,383,394 shares were held under a family trust in the capacity of founder and
3,000,000 shares were held as a trustee of a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita and the
spouse of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael were also trustees.

Effective from 21 April 2017 and as of the date of this report, the 37,383,394 shares were
held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”) in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the
“Unit Trust”) of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor
Reach”) were the unit holders. Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in these
shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a
beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

(b) Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita was deemed to be interested in these shares as a trustee of a foundation
in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and the spouse of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael were also
trustees.

(e} Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests

of his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by his spouse as a trustee of a foundation
in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita were also trustees.

(d) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(e) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (" Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
BNTB Nominees (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of
one of the family trusts.

) This represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s share award
scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of every person,
other than a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the

Company’s issued share capital, as recorded in the register kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERREDR

R-F—tF=A=+—R  ARAREES
MO 336 (BT 2 BRAMATT - #
AR ARG RIARIR R RAR 2 AL (8]
EARTEBITIRASY% H L) (RARTE
ERARBITEIN BIIMT :

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
ANEEERHEROBE (FR)

Name of Personal
substantial shareholders interests
TERRER BB BARES

Wandels Investment Limited -
Sky Bright International Limited -

Verdant Success Holdings Limited -

BNTB Nominees (Guernsey) Limited

Ms Tso Po Ping -
BETLL
Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited -
(formerly known as
Ardley Enterprises Limited)
(B8 Ardley Enterprises Limited)

Mr Lo Hoi Chun 132,000
EHEBLE

Ms Man Bo King -
XEHRZL

LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,701@

Matthews International -
Capital Management, LLC

Family
interests

RikER

63,833,894

68,012,834 @

Corporate
interests
DEER

67,880,834 @

* The percentage has been calculated based on 585,178,033 shares in issue as at 31 March

2017.
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Other
interests
HipgEzs
89,308,213 @
89,308,213 @

89,308,213

89,308,213@

37,383,394

40,914,000

Total
interests
EREY
89,308,213
89,308,213
89,308,213

89,308,213

63,833,894

37,383,394

68,012,834

68,012,834

35,969,133
31,911,701

40,914,000

% of total
issued
shares

HE T
IR {458
ZEDHL
15.262%
15.262%
15.262%
15.262%

10.908%

6.388%

11.623%

11.623%

6.147%
5.453%

6.992%

* AR ER-_ZE—+tF=ZA=Z1+—BBEHTKN
585,178,033 %514

*

*



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(h)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by BNTB Nominees (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these
shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

As of 31 March 2017, these interests were held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”)
in the capacity of trustee. These interests represented part of the interests of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny, being a Director of the Company.

Effective from 21 April 2017 and as of the date of this report, these shares were held by
Ardley in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) and were deemed interest of
Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”), being a beneficiary of the Unit Trust. Mr
Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue of being the sole
shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to
35,969,133 shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK") and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by
MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr Lo
Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK Holding Corporation which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi
Chun.

These interests were held by MMW Holding Corporation which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo
Hoi Chun.

These interests were held in the capacity of investment manager.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the register maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 27 February 2014, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen”) renewed their non-exclusive framework agreement
("2014 Framework Agreement”) which governed the terms upon which
Fung Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would be engaged by
the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation, adjustment, repairing,
maintenance and/or related services (the “Renovation Works") for a further
term of three years from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017 subject to the
following annual caps:

1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 HK$45,000,000
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 HK$57,000,000
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 HK$75,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group. Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2014 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 February 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2014 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$14,279,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the
year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen (Continued)
On 3 March 2017, the Company and Fung Yuen entered into a new
agreement (“2017 Framework Agreement”) to renew the 2014 Framework
Agreement for a further term of three years from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2020 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 HK$35,000,000
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 HK$40,000,000
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 HK$45,000,000

Details of the 2017 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 March 2017.

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2014 Framework
Agreement and confirmed that the transactions under the 2014 Framework
Agreement have been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0 according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Annual Review (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56

of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in information of Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael ceased to be a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the People’s
Republic of China on 28 February 2017.

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael was appointed as a co-opted member of Haven
of Hope Christian Service and a member of its Non-subvented Service
Governing Committee on 17 November 2016.
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Changes in Information of Directors (Continued)
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey retired as a Non-independent Non-executive
Director of AFFIN Bank Berhad on 16 March 2017 and resigned as an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Everbright International
Limited on 24 May 2017.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert was appointed as the Deputy Chairman of
Budget Committee of Securities and Futures Commission on 1 January
2017 and ceased to be a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority on
1 April 2017.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter has been appointed as a Non-executive Director of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, with effect from
24 June 2017.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Pursuant to a supplemental letter to his service contract made in March
2017, the annual basic salary of Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan has been increased
to HK$1,992,000 with effect from 1 April 2017.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

B R Rk K
Independent Auditor’s Report to the B RN E
Members of Café de Coral Holdings Limited BARUEFERATRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFME T ERAF])
Opinion =
What we have audited RMHCEAHRE

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the ARUEBARAT (A THEB AR RE
”Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) (together, “the Group”) set MEBARI(ATHBIEEE])HNAEISE

out on pages 78 to 196, which comprise: 196 EMGATKERE - 6FF

e  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017; o N-F—tH#=HF=+—HWSSHBEI
MR

* the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; o HEZHILEEMEGAEZRE

e  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year o HEZRAILEEMEEEEWAIRSE
then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then o HEZRAI|ILEENGAEREHK
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and e HEZAILEEMNGZEERESRER &

* notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a o  HAMKREME  BIETESIIECER
summary of significant accounting policies. = o
© PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F. Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong EERGCGES RIS - BATIRATFAE21E
T: +852 2289 8888, ETEE - +852 2289 8888 -
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com {55 : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

(Continued)

B R K E
BAE T EE ()

(#&)

Key Audit Matter
HARETSEE

Risk of revenue recognition

Refer to note 2.18 for the Group's accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 22 to the Group financial
statements.

The Group recognised revenue of HK$7,895 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

We focus on revenue recognition in particular for sales
of food and beverage due to its magnitude and nature
of industry. The recording of such revenue involves high
volume of small amount transactions through various
systems, any errors arising from capturing of the data
or interfaces of data amongst the systems might have
significant impact on revenue and therefore it does require

significant time and resource to audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

&

pwc

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

BRE R RE

BREETSE (E)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows: BPEETPEANNEREEAFESMRAT -

(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BANFNMEERRETER

Risk of revenue recognition

We understood, evaluated and validated management's
key internal controls in its revenue recognition process.

We have involved Information Technology ("IT") specialist
to evaluate the design of the relevant IT systems and
controls (including IT controls) over revenue recognition
and tested the operating effectiveness of those controls.

We have performed analytical procedures on the revenue
through comparing the actual result of current year with
that of prior year and assessing the reasonableness of its
trend in relations to the number of outlets.

We tested samples of sales transaction by tracing to

receipts and other relevant evidence.

We also tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts
selected on risk based criteria.

We found the sales transactions being tested were

supported by the appropriate evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR Y S GRS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ms Kong Pui Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TSmOt R

As at 31 March 2017 R=—Z—+F=A=+—H

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

—E—tF —ERE
=A=+-—H —A=+—8H
Note HK$000 HK$°000
ks FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 3 N+ i P 6 80,532 84,598
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 7 1,943,607 1,729,269
Investment properties wEMZE 8 567,700 477,500
Intangible assets B EE 9 4,621 5,500
Deferred income tax assets EEFIBE & 17 26,325 29,433
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESHEE 11 229,621 179,615
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ FERENTES RIERIZS 12 308,523 275,366
3,160,929 2,781,281
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories T8 13 240,154 214,551
Trade and other receivables o N B IR BR IR 14 97,271 87,259
Prepayments and deposits i‘ﬁﬁ NEYSE 14 116,327 156,459
Current income tax recoverable BNHEART UL B 518 9,816 18,994
Bank deposits with maturity tm=1E A =8 H
over three months HERITIE K 15 22,296 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 15 790,017 1,186,643
1,275,881 1,663,906
Total assets BB E 4,436,810 4,445,187
EQUITY R g
Capital and reserves attributable to RNATIRER A AR A R
the equity holders of the Company
Share capital N 20 58,518 58,356
Share premium R0 (B 21 607,364 576,633
Shares held for share award scheme B SRR R BB 2 IR h 21 (164,622) (162,733)
Other reserves H b 21 549,967 468,403
Retained earnings REB g A 21
— Proposed dividends — BT S 368,762 572,002
— Others =i 2,067,388 2,025,616
3,487,377 3,538,277
Non-controlling interests JEPE SR RS 3,743 3,720
Total equity R fEE 44T 3,491,120 3,541,997
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TSmOt R

As at 31 March 2017 R=—Z—+F=A=+—H
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
—E—tF —ERE
=A=1-~ =A=+—~H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 17 31,964 28,038
Provision for long service payments RHARG S BE 16 45,525 51,955
Retirement benefit liabilities BiRewRAasE 16 22,288 20,762
99,777 100,755
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables S AN 18 211,109 214,468
Other creditors and accrued liabilities H b e BRIE & fERT B 19 609,109 575,433
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFRIE B & 25,695 12,534
845,913 802,435
Total liabilities FE=E 945,690 903,190
Total equity and liabilities feiE R B fERRE 4,436,810 4,445,187
Net current assets FRHEE 429,968 861,471
Total assets less current liabilities wEERREERE 3,590,897 3,642,752
The notes on pages 86 to 196 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7£55 86 & 196 B 2 fii s AZAN4R & B 15 T3k 9 2
financial statements. BB o
The consolidated financial statements on page 78 to 196 were approvedby  fEF78E 196 B 26 M BHMERKLEZ AN

the Board of Directors on 26 June 2017 and were signed on its behalf:

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY

Chairman

1

TEHFRAZTRBMERRKRESTRHE
=2

LO TAK SHING, PETER
EEA
Chief Executive Officer
BEEHITE
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COHSO Idated mCC)me Statement—ByFunction of Expense

= A= 22
,Z\\, N E\ﬁﬁ _BERAMESE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE =T —+tF=A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FEr
Revenue A 22 7,895,262 7,567,176
Cost of sales SHERA 24 (6,838,442) (6,522,504)
Gross profit EF 1,056,820 1,044,672
Other (losses)/gains, net HAE (BE), 57 23 (23,148) 716
Administrative expenses 1THE R 24 (430,609) (430,039)
Operating profit =veyayil 603,063 615,349
Finance income RN 25 9,619 12,712
Share of profit of an associate JE(GEEE A A& = 22
Profit before income tax R T BT g 612,682 628,083
Income tax expense FriSti & A 26 (108,832) (110,223)
Profit for the year NG 503,850 517,860
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EEER (5FE) :
Equity holders of the Company AARREREA 503,827 517,982
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 23 (122)
503,850 517,860
Earnings per share for profit RNEERRBIRERFEA
attributable to the equity holders FEAE R 2 B BOH F
of the Company during the year
Basic - YIN 28 HK$0.87 HK$0.90
0.87 BT 0.90%7T
Diluted 3 28 HK$0.87 HK$0.90
0.87 87T 0.90/87T

The notes on pages 86 to 196 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Are EEWATRR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE =T —+tF=A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year NG A 503,850 517,860
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hih2mlgA / (E8)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss BB EF 7484572 HH
Exchange differences arising from EIREINKT B A R
translation of foreign subsidiaries KB RN A 2 [ ERR
and an associate (34,907) (26,034)
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale AEHESREE
financial assets WATERF, (EER) 50,006 (175,532)
Items that will not be reclassified TEFEE B 7 RIRm o HE
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and Y% - R R e
equipment prior to transferring to RIRBYER 2 EERER
investment properties 74,757 -
Remeasurement of retirement benefit EFrERREENEE
liabilities and provision for RERHERE G
long service payments 5,870 (27,210)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEFBREEWA 599,576 289,084
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEAFER2EBA(EB) :
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company — RAFIRERAA 599,553 289,206
— Non-controlling interests — FEPER RS 23 (122)
599,576 289,084

The notes on pages 86 to 196 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Conso idated Statement of Changes in

= N\ 7
20 / N/ I:In\
/\\/ \

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

Shares held
for share
award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share (il Other Retained interests Total

capital premium  #BEiE reserves earnings Total  FEEFIME  equity
BRA  ROBE BEzRG EtRE  REEN ) s REs
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FET FEn FEn FAT FiEn FEn FE7

Balance as at 1 April 2016 RZE—RE
mA—B&# 58356 576,633 (162,733) 468,403 2,597,618 3,538,277 3,720 3,541,997

Profit for the year KEREH - - - - 503,827 503,827 23 503,850
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: £ 2 (B518) /YA :
Exchange differences arising from  EHESNHBAF

translation of foreign subsidiaries LIERES - - - (34,907) - (34,907) - (34,907)
Fair value gain on available-forsale A/t ESREE

financial assets NATERT] - - - 50,006 - 50,006 - 50,006
Revaluation surplus of property, NE - BERFEE

plant and equipment prior to RREMER

transfer to investment properties ZEAR - - - 74,757 - 74,757 - 74,757
Remeasurement of retirement B ERNE

benefit liabilities and provision for ~ BFIEEREH

long service payments R e R - - - - 5,870 5,870 - 5,870
Total comprehensive income BREHA - - - 89856 509,697 599,553 23 599,576
Employee share award scheme-value {EE {7 2Bzt

of employee services — EERBER - - - 1373 - 1373 - 1371
Purchase of shares BARG - - (17,093) - - (17,093) - (17,093)
Proceeds from shares issued FIROZFER 162 25,578 - - - 25740 - 25740

Release of share-based compensation B3R E g AR
reserve to share premium upon MBS HE

exercise of share options B ARG EE - 5,153 - (5,153) = = = =

Vesting of shares of share award Rip B 2R &
scheme - - 15,204  (13,721) (1,483) - - -
Transfer from statutory reserve SR EAERE - = = (791) 791 - - -
Dividends BRE - - - - (670,473) (670,473) - (670,473)
162 30,731 (1,889) (8,292) (671,165) (650,453) - (650,453)

Balance as at 31 March 2017 R_T—+%&

=R=t—H#&% 58,518 607,364 (164,622) 549,967 2,436,150 3,487,377 3,743 3,491,120
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Conso idated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE=

—A= \ /
T:":'/\

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=F

\\/ \

—tEF=ZA=t—RALFE

Shares held
for share
award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share B Other  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  #EEIEHEl  reserves  earnings Total  FEFEHIM equity
BA  ROEE AR EftBE REEF it Ba  RESH
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
FEr  FEr FErn FEr  TEr  FEr FEr  FEr
Balance as at 1 April 2015 RZT—h%F
mA— 58,162 542,182  (133,441) 640,613 2,564,410 3,671,926 3,842 3,675,768
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERF/ (B8 - - - - 517982 517,982 (122) 517,860
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2EES :
Exchange differences arising from  EHESNHBAF
translation of foreign subsidiaries ~ RES& A ]
and an associate LIERES - - - (26,034) - (26,034) - (26,034)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale  AIftHESREE
financial assets MATEEE - - - (175,532) - (175,532) - (175,532)
Remeasurement of retirement B ERNE
benefit liabilities and provision for ~ BFIEEREH
long service payments R & e - = = - (272100 (27,210) - (27.210)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income @27 (&18) /A = = - (201,566) 490,772 289,206 (122) 289,084
Employee share option scheme-value ﬁéﬂﬁ Mt
of employee services — EERBEE - - - 62 - 62 - 62
Employee share award scheme-value {& & &7 Eh=t 2]
of employee services —EERBEER = = - 40478 - 40478 - 40,478
Purchase of shares BARG = - (36,740) = - (36,740) - (36,740)
Proceeds from shares issued BRI 2 PR 194 28,871 = = - 29,065 - 29,065
Release of share-based compensation B3R E g AR
reserve to share premium upon MBS HE
exercise of share options B ARG EE - 5,580 = (5,580) - - - -
Vesting of shares of share award Rin AT EIM AR &
scheme - - 7,448 (8,897) 1,449 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve B 2L TRHE - - = 3,293 (3,293) = = =
Dividends B2 - - - - (455,720) (455,720) - (455,720)
194 34,451 (29,292) 29,356  (457,564) (422,855) - (422,855)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 RZE—1"F
=R=t—H#&% 58,356 576,633 (162,733) 468,403 2,597,618 3,538,277 3,720 3,541,997
The notes on pages 86 to 196 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7£35 86 & 196 B 2 Mii st A ZAN4r & B 1§ sk a9 B
financial statements. BBEy -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e TRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE =T —+tF=A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FEr
Cash flows from operating activities REXB 2 REME
Net cash generated from operations EEEEZFRS 31(a) 955,185 924,738
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 EEFIEH (73,041) (138,296)
Overseas taxation paid B 28N E (6,320) (4,995)
Net cash generated from operating REXRES 2 FHE
activities 875,824 781,447
Cash flows from investing activities REFRH2IREME
Purchase of property, plant and RNEYEF - WEREE
equipment (595,744) (359,868)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB KREER
plant and equipment 31(b) 3,535 104,292
Purchase of franchise rights IR B R AT A - (3,910)
Dividend received from an associate B U A IR E - 62
Dividend received from listed B ETIRERE
investments 12,246 12,246
Purchase of financial assets BESREE = (9,864)
Proceeds from redemption/disposal of ~ f&E /&Rt H &
available-for-sale financial assets S REEMEK - 10,305
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AFET| AL
at fair value through profit or loss 2B RE EFTSH - 38,811
Proceeds from disposal of investment I ER S A FIRE TSR
in an associate - 529
Interest received Bz LS 9,619 12,712
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits (&), SmiBiE=1E A
with maturity over three months B|HIH RERTTIER (22,296) 15,428
Net cash used in investing activities ARKERE) 2 FRE (592,640) (179,257)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash

e TRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE =T —+tF=A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FEr
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEB 2 RERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares 1T{E A% (D B T 221 T AR (D
upon exercise of share options LTS RUFEE 25,740 29,065
Purchase of shares held for share award B8 B i) SZE)=T £1354 2 5D
scheme (17,093) (36,740)
Dividends paid BAIRE (670,473) (455,720)
Net cash used in financing activities ARmE 82 58 e (661,826) (463,395)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekBeFEERZF
cash equivalents CRd) /i (378,642) 138,795
Cash and cash equivalents at the FERGBKREeRASEEEER
beginning of the year 1,186,643 1,057,189
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #NEs [ ki 7 2/ 2 (17,984) (9,341)
Cash and cash equivalents FRAERFReRR&ZEEE
at the end of the year 15 790,017 1,186,643

The notes on pages 86 to 196 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 7£35 86 & 196 B 2 Mii st A ZAN4r & B 1§ sk a9 B

B8 N7 £

financial statements. PR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

2.1

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of
quick service restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining
chains, as well as food processing and distribution business.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 June 2017.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and available-for-sale financial assets, which
are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

2.1

(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new and amended standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or

after 1 April 2016:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28,
“Investments entities applying the consolidation exception”

o Amendments to HKAS 1, “Disclosure initiative”

° Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”

o Amendments to HKAS 27, “Equity method in separate
financial statements”

o Annual improvements to HKFRSs — 2012-2014 Cycle
The directors consider that the new and amended standards do

not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1
(i)

A BTSRRI

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted

HKAS 7 (Amendment)

EREERT7 Z2E5] RERER
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income taxes
EBSFER12 Z85T FrS %t

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

Statement of cash flows

Classification and measurement of

2 EESHBREEE

2.1 mEEE(F)

(i) TIRCEMEOIEIREBTZE
Bl B RR=ZF—R"FNA—H
BN FEEHBER - FER
FERAR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHBMRS
ZEREN

1 January 2017

—E—+F—HA—H
1 January 2017
—E—+H—H—H

1 January 2018

share-based payment transactions

BRI EER 2 25T ABAD RERN KR H 2 DB RETE —E-N\F—HF—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BEMBSEREER9 R THE —E-N\F—-HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
HEMEHRELERI15 KEEFAKZEA —T-N\¥—HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BRI GHREER16 HE —E-NF—HF—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

FEMHRELER 10 K

BB EHERI28 Z1EFT MEENEITE

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

REERHEBENRHAERRZHE

Not yet established by
Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
BB A G HARGIET B H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1
(i)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for
investments in debt instruments: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“OCI"”) and fair value through
profit or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s business model
for managing the debt instruments and their contractual cash
flow characteristics. Investments in equity instruments are always
measured at fair value. However, management can make an
irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in OCI, provided
the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held
for trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss. For
financial liabilities there are two classification categories: amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss. Where non-derivative
financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss,
the changes in the fair value due to changes in the liability’s own
credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless such changes in fair value
would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which
case, all fair value movements are recognised in profit or loss. There
is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss.
For financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative financial
liabilities), all changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1
(i)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment
losses — the expected credit losses (“ECL") model, which constitutes
a change from the incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS contains
a ‘three stage’ approach, which is based on the change in credit
quality of financial assets since initial recognition. Assets move
through the three stages as credit quality changes and the stages
dictate how an entity measures impairment losses and applies
the effective interest rate method. The new rules mean that on
initial recognition of a non-credit impaired financial asset carried at
amortised cost a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL is recognised
in profit or loss. In the case of accounts receivables this day-1 loss will
be equal to their lifetime ECL. Where there is a significant increase
in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than
12-month ECL.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements
and changes in presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The new
standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1
(i)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach:

Identify the contract(s) with customer;
Identify separate performance obligations in a contract;

)

)

) Determine the transaction price;

) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and
)

Recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.

The core principle is that the Group should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
[t moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an
“earnings process” to an “asset-liability” approach” based on
transfer of control.

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in Note 2.18.
Currently, revenue from sales of food and beverages are recognised
in the income statement at the point of sale to customers or when
a group entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables
is reasonably assured.

The directors consider that the new standard does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

2.1
(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing
activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from
HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for on
balance sheet for lessees. The standard replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and related interpretations.

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for
lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$2,399,146,000
(Note 33(a)). However, the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments and how this will affect the
Group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for
short-term and low value leases and some commitments may relate
to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of the
other new and amended HKFRSs, but is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have significant impacts on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2

(a)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2
(a)

(b)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2
(b)

2.3

2.4
(a)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4
(b)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within “finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences relating to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equity held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in the income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4
(@]

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4
(@]

2.5

2.6

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated. Amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold
land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.6

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as Shorter of remaining period of
finance lease the lease or useful life

2.5%

Shorter of remaining period of

Building
Leasehold improvements
the lease or useful life

10%
12.5% -33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and other equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. They are included in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.6

2.7

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of the
property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserves.

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Land
held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases are accounted for
as if they were finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by
external valuers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.7

2.8
(a)

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period in which they
are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group's share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.8
(b)

2.9

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(@]

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to— maturity financial assets and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of reporting date. These
are classified as non-current assets. Trade and other receivables
are classified as loans and receivables in the statement of financial
position (Note 2.12).

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held- to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets. Held-to-
maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except
for those with maturities of less than 12 months from the end of
reporting date. These are classified as current assets.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of reporting date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade — date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the income statement within other gains/(losses), net, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in the income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognized in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
technigues. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at end of each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. Impairment testing of trade and other receivables
is described in Note 2.12.

2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement within administrative expenses. When a trade and other
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade and other receivable. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against administrative
expenses in the income statement.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.14 Share capital (Continued)

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

2.15 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.18 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration of the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the income statement
at the point of sale to customers or when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty and franchise income
Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.19 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of
profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv)  Long service payment
The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(v)  Share-based compensation
The Group operates several equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans under which the Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the Company. These plans
comprise share option schemes and a share award scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
schemes. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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2.21

sre MR

VAR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the assets are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on the nature of the assets. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.23 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities for
financial guarantees at inception, but performs a liability adequacy
test at each reporting date by comparing its net liability regarding
the financial guarantee with the amount that would be required if
the financial guarantee to result in a present legal or constructive
obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in the income
statement immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

(a)

sre MR

W\

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by
management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for
bank deposits, the income and operating cash flows of which are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits at variable interest
rates which are subject to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors
are of the opinion that any reasonable changes in interest rates
would not result in a significant change in the Group's results.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented for interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as available-for-sale financial assets. The Group has
not mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group's financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2017, if the price of the listed securities (available-
for-sale financial assets) increase/decrease by 10% with all other
variables being held constant, the Group’s investment reserve would
have increased/decreased by approximately HK$22,962,000 (2016:
HK$17,962,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk mainly arises
from bank balances and deposits, rental deposits and trade and
other receivables. The carrying amount of these balances in the
statement of financial position represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s bank balances and deposits are placed in
banks and financial institutions which are independently rated with
high credit ratings. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these banks and financial institutions as they
have no default history in the past.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group’s historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivable has
been made.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's bank
balances and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions
with good credit ratings, and the Group has a large number of
counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non- performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The Group continues to maintain a healthy
net cash position by keeping credit lines available and to maintain
flexibility in future funding.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments for trade and
other payables and operating expenses. The Group mainly finances
its working capital requirements through internal resources.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, all of the Group’s financial liabilities equaled
their carrying amounts as they are due within 12 months from
31 March 2017 with insignificant discounting impact.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Total capital of the Group is calculated as “capital and reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company” less total
borrowings, if any. Management considers that the Group’s capital
risk is minimal as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3

B REREE (&)

NHEMGE ()

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are AEBR-_ZT—tF=A=+—8%A
measured at fair value at 31 March 2017: FEAENESHEEHIIN T
Level 1 Total
E—® et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
— Listed investments - FWigE 229,621 229,621
Total financial assets measured BRATEFENEREERTE
at fair value 229,621 229,621
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are AEBR-_ZT—X"F=ZA=+—8%A
measured at fair value at 31 March 2016: TEAENESHEEHIIN T
Level 1 Total
i 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
— Listed investments - FWig&E 179,615 179,615
Total financial assets measured BRATEFENEREERTE
at fair value 179,615 179,615
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is TERMBEXINemIHE  EATE
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is TERREBTMMSE - WRBER
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available BERAMNEHRRRZH X5 £42
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or B EAEE TERGENEERS
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly BE MZERERKEBEIATRFGEE
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These ETNERMBRMSRXIE - L5
instruments are included in level 1. AIARREEE - WET ARMAE K -
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade and other
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and
3 during the year.
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(a)
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VAR

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights,
and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs to sell calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. The estimates are based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and functions.
Management will increase the depreciation and amortisation
charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives.
It will write off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable and amortisable lives and therefore affect the
depreciation and amortisation charges in future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain
whether there are sufficient future taxable profits available before
such tax losses expire where the final outcome of these uncertainties
are different from the estimation, such differences will impact the
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such determination is made.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets
The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an active market
are determined by the quoted market prices.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in income statement. The Group
obtains independent valuations at least annually. At the end of each
reporting period, the management update their assessment of the
fair value of each property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non— market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and
(iii) including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or shares that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

(d)

(e)

(f)

BASE RS BT & & H il ()
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AEBREBANBEESE - AN
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Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments.
He assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment result as
presented below represents operating profit before fair value gain/
(loss) on investment properties, gain on disposal of a leasehold
property, depreciation and amortisation and impairment loss.

Segment information for the Group for the current year and

AREBFEELRRERNEBRR -
KREBFIANRBRMER KD IHER -

AEEERENTEENASENAIR

T RERES RO ERER L EBR

WwEAE (EREELPEAM) FHEE

EIMM e RTINZ D BEELKRRRE

BWEZ XA EEN(BE)  HEH

EME 6N -~ e - BIERRERR
Al 2 =& A -

AEERNFENDBERM L BB F L0

comparative figures are as follows: N
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FEl A it TEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE-T—+5F
“A=1+T—HItFE
Total segment revenue BAFBA 6,919,267 1,103,246 8,022,513
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) U ONCIEDD) (2,742) (124,509) (127,251)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R B NEBURA)

(Note ii) (B i) 6,916,525 978,737 7,895,262
Segment result (Note iii) DABELE (HEii) 808,831 131,341 940,172
Depreciation and amortisation e R (262,764) (49,947) (312,711)
Fair value gain on investment WEME 2 N HER

properties 400 - 400
Impairment loss of property, M - R MR

plant and equipment 2B E (14,855) (9,943) (24,798)
Finance income WA 5,942 3,677 9,619
Income tax expense FriSti &R (98,512) (10,320) (108,832)
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Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FR BRI A A KEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-_T—F
—A=t+—HItFE
Total segment revenue FEEET PN 6,450,813 1,222,602 7,673,415
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) NEB S FEUWA (FFEET) (2,697) (103,542) (106,239)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2k 8 SNERUA)

(Note ii) (FEii) 6,448,116 1,119,060 7,567,176
Segment result (Note iii) DFEEELE (i) 862,148 53,066 915,214
Depreciation and amortisation e K (236,212) (66,520) (302,732)
Fair value loss on investment REYEZ N ERBE

properties (900) - (900)
Gain on disposal of a leasehold HEREME 2 &

property 25,097 - 25,097
Impairment loss of property, M - BE K& REER

plant and equipment (5,554) (15,776) (21,330)
Finance income B A 8,130 4,582 12,712
Share of profit of an associate FE(GEEE R Al E A 22 - 22
Income tax expense FriStiE A (105,315) (4,908) (110,223)
[0) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i) NELD AR Z TR LE F ¥ 15878

course of business. T ©

(i) The Group has a large number of customers. For the

year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no revenue was

derived from transactions with a single external customer

representing 10% or more of the Group's total revenue.

(ii)

REBHEEREET - REZE

—tFRZZT-R"F=HA
=+—BHIEFE  WEE-IHP
BREIRFEEEAEBRBIKRA
10% KA EZ A ©
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
(i)  Recondiliation of total segment results to total profit before (i) 485> KRSR AR B AR BR T BT N 0
income tax is as follows: FRIAE -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment results Pak SE i 940,172 915,214
Depreciation and amortisation e R g (312,711) (302,732)
Gain on disposal of a leasehold property HEHRE W~ % F - 25,097
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment BEME 2 N ERF (EE)
properties 400 (900)
Impairment loss of property, Mz -~ BB KR EREEE
plant and equipment (24,798) (21,330)
Operating profit & B ) 603,063 615,349
Finance income B RS A 9,619 12,712
Share of profit of an associate FEAGESE & R B a A = 22
Profit before income tax BRI A 612,682 628,083
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&8 Rl it KEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE—_ZT—+F
:ﬁ — "f'_ E M:EFQ*
Segment assets DEEEE 3,454,641 716,407 4,171,048
Segment assets include: DEEERSRE
Additions to non-current assets NEIEMBEE
(other than financial instruments (£ T A NMIELEFTE
and deferred income tax assets) BERKRIN) 647,350 16,308 663,658
Year ended 31 March 2016 BHE—_T—RF
=A=+—HItFE
Segment assets DIEEE 3,478,969 738,176 4,217,145
Segment assets include: DIEERLRE
Additions to non-current assets NBEIERMBEE
(other than financial instruments (&R T A NMIELEFRTE
and deferred income tax assets) BERKRIN) 395,897 39,601 435,498
As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s non-current assets (other R-ZE—+F=A=+—H ~A&HE
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that EREERFEAMNIERE EE
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted (ERIARELERIBEERIN) D5l

£52,604,248,0008 75( — & — /XN F ¢
2,199,576,0007% 7t ) & 300,735,0007%&
To(ZZF—J/<4F : 372,657,000 7T) ©

to HK$2,604,248,000 (2016: HK$2,199,576,000) and
HK$300,735,000 (2016: HK$372,657,000) respectively.
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

follows:

HREEMERMT

2017 2016
—s—+EF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Total segment assets BOHEE 4,171,048 4,217,145
Deferred income tax assets RIEFIAE 26,325 29,433
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHERE 229,621 179,615
Current income tax recoverable BEA AT Ug Bl 5 18 9,816 18,994
Total assets EEE 4,436,810 4,445,187

6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights ME TRt fERRE

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent

prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

AEENHEE L3R 4 b AR S

EEMEEHER
e :

BN ERREFE - 2

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EFE—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Beginning of the year FNEEER 84,598 88,386
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 & - Hb(F FA RS 8H

and land use rights (2,952) (2,943)

Exchange differences E 5 =58 (1,114) (845)

End of the year FIREESR 80,532 84,598

Amortisation expense of HK$2,952,000 (2016: HK$2,943,000) has

been charged to cost of sales.
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 Y% BERRE
Land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and other
(Note b)  improvements equipment Plant and
T REF HE HEMR machinery Total
(GEAY BFEE HitRE R R ER ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FET
At 31 March 2015 R-Z—h%F
:ﬂ :"'_ H
Cost P& 1,049,491 1,037,339 1,366,799 191,935 3,645,564
Accumulated depreciation REMERRERE
and impairment losses (183,523) (637,100) (1,016,320) (70,960) (1,907,903)
Net book amount REFE 865,968 400,239 350,479 120,975 1,737,661
Year ended 31 March 2016 BEZT—F
=HA=1t—RILFE
Opening net book amount FRREFE 865,968 400,239 350,479 120,975 1,737,661
Additions R 17,640 154,686 179,627 13,996 365,949
Disposals HE (19,382) (10,835) (7,914) (1,389) (39,520)
Depreciation e (22,732) (124,870) (133,323) (18,284) (299,209)
Impairment DERIEN - (15,670) (5,660) = (21,330)
Exchange differences b H ZE5E (5,219) (5,611) (1,443) (2,009) (14,282)
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 836,275 397,939 381,766 113,289 1,729,269
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—RF
=RA=+—H
Cost PR 1,037,423 1,050,877 1,373,065 198,890 3,660,255
Accumulated depreciation ZEBMERREESE
and impairment losses (201,148) (652,938) (991,299) (85,601) (1,930,986)
Net book amount REFE 836,275 397,939 381,766 113,289 1,729,269
ARRLEBEEFRNRF - 2017 F8]
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 9% BERRMEGE)
(Continued)
Land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and other
(Note b)  improvements equipment Plant and
T REF HE HRR machinery Total
(Fff3ED) BFEE Hithse s [ T Mg Febl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZZT—tF
“RA=1+—RHItFE
Opening net book amount FHIREFE 836,275 397,939 381,766 113,289 1,729,269
Additions ANE 243,126 147,441 196,587 8,240 595,394
Disposals HE - (8,180) (7,959) (289) (16,428)
Depreciation e (25,856) (123,530) (141,083) (18,547) (309,016)
Impairment iE - (14,582) (10,122) (94) (24,798)
Transfer from property, EWE - BFEKRE
plant and equipment HEEREYE
to investment properties (89,800) - - - (89,800)
Revaluation surplus prior =k ER S
to transfer of property BERAYER
plant and equipment Z EhRER
to investment properties 74,757 - - - 74,757
Exchange differences PR ER (6,486) (5.307) (1,539) (2,439) (15,771)
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 1,032,016 393,781 417,650 100,160 1,943,607
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F
=A=+—H
Cost P& 1,249,047 1,043,481 1,432,526 201,134 3,926,188
Accumulated depreciation REMERRERE
and impairment losses (217,031) (649,700) (1,014,876) (100,974) (1,982,581)
Net book amount IREFE 1,032,016 393,781 417,650 100,160 1,943,607
(@) Depreciation expenses of HK$292,330,000 (2016: (@) ¥ E B 292,330,000/ jt( =
HK$283,155,000) and HK$16,686,000 (2016: = — 74 ¢ 283,155,000 ) &

16,686,000/ T ( = & — /X F -
16,054,000 7T ) B2 % Bl & A $H
EXRARITHER - BEEIED
ST AE M (E518) A (K &
23) °

HK$16,054,000) has been charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively, while impairment loss
has been charged to other (losses)/gains, net (Note 23).
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 9% BERRMEGE)
(Continued)
(b)  The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows: b) AEETHREFOHAT :
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net book value: BREFE :
Freehold land KA FERELTH 14,811 14,811
Leasehold land classified HETHHEARMERE
as finance lease 423,148 236,495
Buildings g 594,057 584,969
1,032,016 836,275
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s freehold land KEER-_ZT—tFR_FT—XREFE=H4
was located outside Hong Kong. =+ BFFERKAREE LA RS
BRI o
8 Investment Properties 8 REW=
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FOEEH 477,500 478,400
Transfer from property, B - BE k&
plant and equipment EREIEYE
to investment properties 89,800 -
Fair value gain/(loss) (Note 23) ANFEREF, (EE) (FzE23) 400 (900)
End of the year FREE R 567,700 477,500
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8 Investment Properties (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties:

BREY= (8])

AIREYMENIRR P ERNERER

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FEr

Rental income e A 19,023 17,274
Direct operating expenses EERSWAZYHE

from properties that generate ZEEEEER
rental income (963) (939)
18,060 16,335

As at 31 March 2017, the group had no un-provided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2016: Nil).

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by CBRE Limited (the “Valuer”), to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
Fair value gain/(loss) has been credited/(charged) to other (losses)/
gains, net (Note 23).
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8 Investment Properties (Continued) 8 RKBEWHX(E)

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair THRAIBBEERZAFESTIREDE
value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2017 using
R-B—+tHF=A=+—-BZATEFEFXEH
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable  unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs
EEEELEER HA T HEm FEREEM
W5 EHRE ERBMAE ERBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
g (B—4) (B=#%) (E=4)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements & EMHEAF(EE
Investment properties: KEME -
— Shops — Hong Kong - - B8 - - 567,700
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2016 using
RZZE—RF=A=+—HAZRAFEFEFREAR
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
FEAEEEAR HAb TR AR
M5 FHIRME BERBAE BRBWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
faatt (B—#) (BE=#) (B=4&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#ET T#ET
Recurring fair value measurements & HEAF(EE
Investment properties: KEME -

— Shops — Hong Kong - HH - B - - 477,500
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AEEBER AR EH B RASCEHRER %
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in EZERHREER  BRATEER
circumstances that caused the transfer. HEEA R -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FR F—R F_ARE=REGHE
§%°
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 March 2017
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified valuer
in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
(2012 Edition)” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and the International Valuation Standards (IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the sales comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group's management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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9 Intangible Assets 9 HIEE
Other
intangible
Goodwiill assets Total
HE HtgEREE Mz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFWMA—H
Cost AR 1,350 70,365 71,715
Accumulated amortisation RIRE S OB EEE
and impairment losses (246) (69,337) (69,583)
Closing net book amount FARAREDFE 1,104 1,028 2,132
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE T RNF=A=1+—HItFE
Opening net book amount FEYEREFE 1,104 1,028 2,132
Additions NE - 3,910 3,910
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #5%E F (FiisE (a) - (580) (580)
Exchange differences EHZER - 38 38
Closing net book amount FIRAREDFE 1,104 4,396 5,500
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=A=+—H
Cost B AR 1,350 59,371 60,721
Accumulated amortisation RAEHE S MR EE R
and impairment losses (246) (54,975) (55,221)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 4,396 5,500
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—+F=-A=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FAAREFE 1,104 4,396 5,500
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #E4%E F (Fi5E (a) - (743) (743)
Exchange differences PE X =% = (136) (136)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 3,517 4,621
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—H
Cost BN 1,350 59,371 60,721
Accumulated amortisation RIEH S MR EE R
and impairment losses (246) (55,854) (56,100)
Closing net book amount FIRAREDFE 1,104 3,517 4,621
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$743,000 (2016: HK$580,000) has been
charged to costs of sales.

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of 5 to 20 years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(©)

BYEE (8

743,000/ 70 ( =& —7< £ : 580,000/5
TC) 2 E DT ASHERK o

HEMEEEETFBaEERE - EFEA
FHIASZE204F -

BB RE R
BEDRBASENEEER (RERE
ELBAER) D

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (ii) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.
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10 Subsidiaries 10 MIEXRF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March TREIRZZE—+F=A=+—HH
2017: TEWNBRFER
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held"
Name of subsidiary SRS B B®1T/ i Fr#EMk %  Principal activities
MEATRE RS EfRA  ROER B FEER
Ah Yee Leng Tong Hong Kong HK$600,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Restaurants Limited B 600,000/87C  Ei@ R

b —&ZERAR

Amigo Mio Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 20087 E@ HR
Asia Pacific Catering Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Corporation Limited BE 20T L@ HR
ZERRER AT
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BNERARAT BB 10,00087T E#@ MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEFRLE BB 500,000/87C & KR
Bravo le Café Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 28T L@ KR
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Ll YN BB 28T L@ KR
Café de Coral Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
RBERHE 1%71T  E# REER
Café de Coral Central Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
Processing Limited B 2087 LA BYEE
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Café de Coral (China)
Limited
AR (HE) BRAR

Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS

Café de Coral
Development Limited'

Café de Coral Fast Food
Limited
ARLREBR AR

Café de Coral Group
Limited
ARECERRAT

Café de Coral (Guangzhou)
Catering Company Limited
ARE(EBM)RM
BRAE

Café de Coral (Macau)
Limited
AR (R BRAF

Café de Espressamente illy
(HK) Limited

City Energy Limited
BlaEBRAE

Dai Lo Foo (Holdings) Limited
AER(EE)ERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEMAR LB L
RSB

Hong Kong

BB

Denmark
e

British Virgin Islands

EBERES

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

The People”s

Issued/
registered
capital
B#T/
ERUITIEN

HK$40,000,000
40,000,000 47T

DKK125,000

125,000 fH25 52 BB

Us$1
(=

HK$20
20/87T

HK$148,923,550
148,923,550 78 7T

HK$21,000,000

Republic of China 21,000,000/ T

(“The PRC")
hEEARKME
(TRE L)

Macau
Al

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BE
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MOP300,000
300,000 2F7T

HK$12,000,000

12,000,000 77T

HK$200,000
200,000/ 7T

HK$1,804,176
1,804,176 57T

10 FEAR (&)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held'
P Frigk &
LigvE=bill BO'
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
A
Ordinary 100%
i
- 100%
Ordinary 70%
Ordinary 70%
=8
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
i

Principal activities
TEXRE

Investment holding
AR

Investment holding
KA

Investment holding
REZRK

Catering

FR

Catering
#A

Catering
%A

Catering
#R

Catering
#R

Property investment

MERE

Catering
%A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ A Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER B FEEK
Diners Court Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Management Limited BB 28T L@ KR
LZRUEEARAF
Dongguan Asia Pacific The PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 7,400,000 7T 7928
Limited
REREHRARAE
Dongguan Continental The PRC RMB27,330,000 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited i AR 27,330,000 BYEE

REBERMARAF

Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 10,0007  Ei@ KR
Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 4,000,000  EiB@ KR
Fine Regent Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited B 1HT EA KR
REBEBARLDA
Foshan Café de Coral The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 6,000,000 7T R
Limited

FRIUARERRBR AT

Gateway City Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 2087 Ll KR

Global Force Limited Hong Kong HK$12,466,446  Ordinary 100%  Catering

BEBARAT BB 12,466,446 L@ KR
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sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ FiE Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER B EEEK
Goodton Development Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB 10,0007  E@ REER
BEERERAA]
Grand Regent China Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited o 28T L@ REER
REHREARLA
Grand Seasons Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
(Central) Food and B8 10,0008 EiRE AR

Beverages Caterers
Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited B 1T R KR

AEEERRLDT

Greenwise Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering

HEBRAF BB 28T LR HR

Guangzhou Asia Pacific The PRC HK$16,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited H 16,000,000 % 7T R

BMZERRERAE]

Guangzhou Café de The PRC US$23,500,000 - 100%  Food processing
Coral Foods Limited H 23,500,000 ¢ RYEE
BINARLERMBE
BRAE
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sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ A Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER B FEEK
Honour Congee & Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Noodles Food Limited BB 28T L@ KR
ERERmARRAR
Huizhou Asia Pacific The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 3,200,000 7T 7928
Limited

BMZERRERAE

Interface Consultants British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Provision of
Limited RBERES 1%1T  E@® royalty services
RIS TR
Invol Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$6,125,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BEERERER AR (incorporation)/ 6,125,000/  E&@ MERE
The PRC
(operation)
BB (ML)
PR (58)
Jetstar Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RERARDE BB 1#T TaE HR
Jiangmen Café de Coral The PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 5,000,000/ 7T R

TFIRRERRBR AR

Kater International Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
IR AR AR BE 28T BB #R
Kamstar International Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering

Limited BE BT ER@ #R
LERBRERARF
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sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ A Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER Aol FEEK
Kolink Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of
BB b AR AR BB 28T E@ premises space
MEWELE
Luckyview Enterprises Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of properties
Limited BB 1BT ER HEME
FRECERRIT
Maradona Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BB 2008 E@ REER
Paramount Success Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REARAT] BB 28T E@ REER
Perfect Plan International British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited REERES 1%7m  E@ REER
Regal Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BaRRERAA] BB BT ER HR
Real King Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
ZxBR AR BB BT ER HR
Scanfoods Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000  Ordinary 100%  Food trading
LRERRRERAF s 2,100,000 EH@ RmE
Shanghai Arena Catering The PRC HK$34,860,000 - 100%  Catering
Management Limited H 34,860,000 /87T R

LEEBEREEBRAR
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sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ A Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER B FEEK
Shenzhen Café de Coral The PRC HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 12,000,000 7T KR
Limited

FIARRERRBRAF]

Shenzhen Prime Deal The PRC HK$32,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 32,000,000 /87T R
Limited

A RR R AR AR

Silver Weal Enterprises Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited B 1T R KR
RAEEERRAT

Sparango Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 2008 E@ HR

The Spaghetti House Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding

Restaurants Limited BB 10,000,000/  Ei@ REER
EMERRAT
Uwin Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HERBARAT BB BT ER@ #R
Very Nice Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$17,025,000  Class A 100%  Catering
HEBRMARAT BB HK$5,675,000  Class B2 #R

17,025,000/87C  A%ERI>
5,675,000/  BHAI2

Vogue Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BN ARAE] BB BT ER REER

Weli Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
AZBRAF 0 1,000,000/87T &Ei& /90
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sre MR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held'
Name of subsidiary SRR R BT/ FiE Fi#M4>  Principal activities
MEARERE RS 2 HEfERA RGER B EEEK
Winfast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
KXEEBER AR (incorporation)/ 10,0008 E@ MERE
PRC (operation)
B (GERAKL)
FE ()
Worldson Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited BB 28T L@ KR
EFREERATA
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
REBRLRE ! 300,0002Fm  Ei@ MERE
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560  Class A® 100%  Catering
BEEHRRER AT B HK$2,872,100  Class B? R
6,701,560/87T  AMEHI®
2,872,100/87T BRI
Zhongshan Café de Coral The PRC HK$1,300,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 1,300,000 87T KR
Limited
FILARERR AR A A
Zhuhai Café de Coral The PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company H 8,000,000 7T HR

Limited
HERRLRRERAF]
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IN=Np e e kR

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MIBATE (&)

1 Cafe de Coral Development Limited 2N /A &)
HERE - A EMMB QR REERE -

! Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

2 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of Class B shares 2 LEMBARAERRG 2HEAZE TR
on certain shareholders’ rights. FREMERBERRGD 2 A AR 2 #

7 o
E Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class 2 LM EB A RARRRG 2 HEAEFRE

B shares have no voting rights. ¥ - MBERIRMN 258 AWK ZHE -

¢ A AR B RE T A SZ B0 & B 2 A SE & TR A R AR
X o HIXGELEBEHEHDE -

4 The official names of the companies incorporated in PRC are in Chinese. English
translation is for reference only.

2 All of the companies incorporated in PRC are wholly foreign owned enterprises. > AR BRI AR RINETEERE -
11 Available-for-sale Financial Assets 11 AL ESREE

2017 2016

—E—tHF —ZT—RF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FEIT

Beginning of the year FAEES 179,615 355,147
Additions NE - 9,864
Disposals HE = (9,864)

Fair value gain/(loss) transferred to EAEMEMBAZA

other comprehensive income (Note 21) AL (EsE) (BsE21) 50,006 (175,532)
End of the year FRERR 229,621 179,615

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

Listed investments EmiEE
— Market value of listed securities - F@sEmE

AHEESREERFEIATIER -

—E—tF
HK$°000
FET

229,621

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FET

179,615

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HK dollars.

The fair values of the listed investments are based on their current

bid prices in an active market.

AHEHESREESDABITHE °

EHHRENRFERBEENSNIRT

BHERE

AREEEBBR AR - 2017 F3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12

13

14

sre MR

VAR

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits mainly comprise rental and
utility deposits and prepayments for property, plant and equipment.

Substantially all of the non-current prepayments and deposits are
denominated in HK dollars. The existing counterparties do not have
significant defaults in the past.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$2,419,927,000 during the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: HK$2,360,204,000).

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits

12

13

14

FRBFECSRERES

FETMENTERT K
IKEBERERERME - BE KR
FKIH o

Bz TE2eEES R
R TRR

RBAB D IERETANFKIB IR S AE
TEHE - BRNRZEUTEELEEX
RER

F&

FEXTEERERYIBEMER - RKAE
HEAIEIRREMRE 2 BIEEAR °

REBEZE-_T—+tF=A=+—HLHF

B EERAEILREFABEXNSTZ

78K A £52,419,927,0008 T ( = &
—754F 1 2,360,204,000787T) °

EXRHMEWRE - BN
RERRE

i

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables B EIERTE 46,508 43,482
Less: provision for impairment R A EWARIBRE R

of trade receivables (850) (285)

Trade receivables — net (Note a) ST RTE (Y5 a) 45,658 43,197

Other receivables (Note b) H b Uk iRIE (FisEb) 51,613 44,062

97,271 87,259

Prepayments and deposits TBRRIERIES 116,327 156,459

213,598 243,718
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IN=Np e e kR

14 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

(@) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis. The Group also grants a
credit period between 30 to 90 days to certain customers for the provision of the
Group’s institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the Group’s food
manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(b) Other receivable as at 31 March 2016 comprised the proceeds receivable from
disposal of the North American business amounted to HK$2,883,000.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

14

ERLHEMEWERE - B
MERZRE (&)

(a)

AEBHZFPZHENRERXHRE - A%
BT =TEATREERTHHREER
SERBRRRY  HEASERMEER
T8 fn 2 BUE AU AT AR o

R=ZF—A"F=A=+—8 ' EtEKkiREA
ARBLEE Y JE SRS 2 FE UK TE 2,883,000 74
JC °©

EEBUFRBORESITIT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —TRF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 - 30 days =E=+H 27,288 25,529
— 60 days =+—H=XRT+H 12,991 9,653

— 90 days ~Tt—HZEAT+H 2,750 5,081

91 - 365 days Nt+—BE=\ ~+hH 2,845 3,073
Over 365 days BB =mThH 634 146
46,508 43,482

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as

EEBURBRNREREZSIT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Beginning of the year FHEEER (285) =
Provision for impairment BE RS (565) (285)
End of the year FRERR (850) (285)
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14

sre MR

VAR

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

The creation and release of provision for impairment receivables have
been included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash. The Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are not
considered as impaired. As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables
of HK$2,629,000 (2016: HK$2,934,000) were past due but not
impaired. Substantially all of these trade receivables were aged less
than 120 days. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables and deposits that
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have significant defaults in the past.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and deposits
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

14

ERLHEMEWERE - B
MERZRE (&)

FTIE M E A YR IBRERED AT A
FEBERAZITHER - £REKRA
FHIROBE RS ERHEEWEER
SNRERMIE - EFRRERE KR
RERBRENRE 2 2 REBYRIBEL T

DR -

BEAREE LR 0 AL EEKEETR
SEBIERERE -N_T—+LF=
A=+—8 " &% E%iRI1E2,629,000
BIT(ZZ— 75 1 2,934,000/ 7T ) &
BB ERE BRIBDZEEE
FEUBRTE M BRER V1200 WEHR%Z
MW ERRESENBEYRFAR -
& B A A A @ UAEREE o

BT R 80 BR 8 ARG (B 2 & 36 I HL b FE W AR
BERRENEEERELBERERS
HARKLEENERGETIH - BRE
MR ZE T BEWEERRER -

HRERHIRENE - &% M HE M EUER
BRZRENEIEQHESENEAFE -

AE B LR R AR RIE < B (E
WA T EMEHE -

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK dollar BT 70,305 70,139
RMB AR 26,952 14,237
Canadian dollar mnEAxrT 14 2,883
97,271 87,259
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15 Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three 15 EBEB=EA W ANRITHF
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents MURRERBEEEEH
(@) Bank deposits with maturity over three (a) #BB=1EAZIEBNRITER
months
As at 31 March 2017, bank deposits with maturity over three RZZE—tF=HA=+—H HiBE=F
months bore average interest rate of 0.6% per annum. AEHBEMRITERNTEHENER
0.6% °
Bank deposits with maturity over three months: 8 iE =& A B H B /RT3
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
US dollar £ 19,384 =
Canadian dollar MnERT 2,912 -
22,296 -
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERRESEHEIEH
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHRE 134,264 139,158
Short-term bank deposits REHASRTTIE AR 655,753 1,065,310
790,017 1,204,468
Bank overdraft SRITBEY - (17,825)
Cash and cash equivalents, net HeRFeEFBEIERFE 790,017 1,186,643

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.1%
(2016: 1.4%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity
of 81 days (2016: 83 days).

RHRITERZERFMNER1.1% (=

T—RF 1 1.4%)

C REFRLZLFGE

HHA8IB(ZZ—"F :83H) -

AREEEBBR AR - 2017 F3R
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sre MR

15 Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three 15
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents

B = A 58 B WRTE
FURBELRESZEER

(Continued) (&)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) JRERIRESZFEIER (B)
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following ReMkBReFEEBUATINEEE :
currencies:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
HK dollar BT 480,158 932,289
RMB AR 287,628 195,989
US dollar ETT 2,838 42,794
Canadian dollar nEAxT 1,450 4,214
Others EAh, 17,943 11,357
790,017 1,186,643

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$286,207,000 (2016:
HK$195,421,000) were denominated in RMB and were deposited
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and remittance of these deposits out
of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

152  Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2017

AEBNUAREFENRE RIRTE
#3286,207,000% ;t( = T — X F:
195,421,000 7T ) 17 B A8 A B A0 #h 2R
T BZEAARBIENEHLBRR
HINEE Kz B AP (B 78 38 <7 R B U 2 6 Y
HNEE HlIFRIE K A f1



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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16

(a)

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments

16

BRAREBANEERRBKRKE
ERE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Retirement benefit liabilities BRERAAE
Defined contribution schemes (Note a)  REMFETEI (FizEa) (14,480) (12,648)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) AE@AETE (MaEb) (22,288) (20,762)
Provision for long service payments REARG @B (ko)
(Note ¢) (45,525) (51,955)
Defined contribution schemes (a) HAEMIKETE

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China, Canada and the United States
of America. The Group is required to make contributions to the
schemes at various applicable rates of monthly salary that are in
accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$14,480,000 (2016: HK$12,648,000), which were
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.

AEBEREBRGMEATEEETSEDS
REBERBKIFZHEEAZEZE
BieftaflE B8l ([RESE
g - ZETEABUXAAEE °

REBBESHE ARELRESERE
819788 R1REBARWA (Ex& Ria
EREEREIRD]) 2 5% AT EIFR -
& 77 1SR il 1M R PR R E A 1,50078
T © skaT &l R STk AR A BR 75 H R
Z BRA 1% BERN SR o

AEBTRPEAM - MEAREEE
BRHAEHFGE - AEEAREH
BOINREE  FARGFENTRBERL
KAz E BB -

N—B—+E=fF=+—0 ~&£EHE

FLTE M FET B FE 1 3XIE 14,480,000 7 7T
—Z N5 12,648,000/ 7T) © BT

AHMEMRERETERANR -

=y

AREEEBBR AR - 2017 F3R
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16

(b)

sre MR

VAR

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

The net liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are determined as follows:

16

(b)

RASENEER RURE
=8 (&)

REBAGTE

REBN AT EREREBRHEATEMNE
2l o ZErEIM B EEIZBEENAS
B x&kEe ARG FEHAE - 51
Bl BEETEBUEAERESAZAR
SEEESHREE -

HErESImAKE RS RS ERIBIUR
HENERNEREENRRE 2 EETE
2 HRERET TR o

R ERAFEETHBYLASERBEE
Bttt (B8 ) BR A RATETEME
B AETmE-

EHRAVBMRARABRZFEERT
SITHERE

2017 2016

—ET—tF ZERF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Present value of funded obligations EEEMEZRE (125,483) (134,098)

Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC A AFE 103,195 113,336

Net liabilities in the consolidated REMBIRRARAFEE

statement of financial position (22,288) (20,762)
Remeasurement on defined benefit EFFFERAEEMNEE (FIERZRIN

obligation excluding interest expense (2,138) (1,235)

Remeasurement return on plan assets & #zt 25t E1EE 2 B3R 1,996 (2,729)
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IN=Np e e kR

16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EAKEENEBR RHIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments SRHME (E)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) *%E%U*‘I'EJ (#8)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: ERNEERNEBNT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FEE R (134,098) (156,676)
Current service cost RA RIS (3,298) (3,686)
Interest cost A B AR (1,301) (1,756)
Employee contributions EEHR (886) (1,009)
Remeasurement on defined B ERERHEE
benefit scheme (2,138) (1,235)
Benefits paid SRR 16,238 30,264
End of the year FREE R (125,483) (134,098)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FEEEMNATEZESAT ¢
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year FHEEER 113,336 141,332
Interest income FBUA 1,110 1,594
Employee contributions EEHK 886 1,009
Employer contributions {EEH 2,127 2,421
Administrative expenses paid Mt EIEEX N2 ITHER
from plan assets (22) (27)
Remeasurement on return on EHTERTEIBE 2 BHR
plan assets 1,996 (2,729)
Benefits paid SERE T (16,238) (30,264)
End of the year FRER 103,195 113,336
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16

(b)

A BTSRRI

VAR

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as
follows:

RASENEER RURE

=8 (&)

SERAMEE (&)

TR BaRkNBRZSBWT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-REF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current service cost IR A RS A4 3,298 3,686

Interest cost B A 1,301 1,756

Interest income on plan assets FTEIEE 2 F B (1,110) (1,594)

Administrative expenses THER 22 27
Total, included in employee w=n - EREEEERAFIA

benefit expenses (Note 29) (FfF5E29) 3,511 3,875

Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement,
approximately HK$1,889,000 (2016: HK$2,123,000) and
HK$1,622,000 (2016: HK$1,752,000) have been included in cost of
sales and administrative expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate Ah3R

Expected rate of future salary increases Rl 2 T8 H 1 & &

Eet AR BRRNBREFREBREH
ERARRITEHE R 2 541,889,000
TL( =T — N4 12,123,000 7 ) &
1,622,000 70 (ZZF—754F : 1,752,000
BT °

FrRA 2 EEHEBRIT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
1.3% p.a. 1.0% p.a.
B8F1.3% FF1.0%
4.5% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
BF45% BF45%

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a loss of
HK$142,000 (2016: HK$3,964,000).
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16

(b)

A BTSRRI

VAR

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$35,608,000 (2016: a loss of HK$35,466,000).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan
assets are as follows:

Equity instruments FHIA
Debt instruments BIET A
Other assets Hth&eE

16 RASEIEER RIIKRK
=8 (&)

(b) RERAETE(E)
ERAEERAREKERNATEANE
2 RETEFT 2 AE51835,608,0005
TL(ZZ—74F : [E51835,466,00087T) ©

TR EERRNAEEEANL

LU
2017 2016
—B—+F —TRF
6.0% 14.8%
81.0% 77.9%
13.0% 7.3%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO") to changes
in the assumption is:

Assumption Bk
Discount rate BEIE &
Salary increase rate HEIE R =R

FERNE TR RRESNGURIES

Impact on DBO
HAERANEENZE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
BRE& 28 BRI N B
0.5% Decreased Increased

by 2.6% by 2.7%

D 2.6% EN2.7%

0.5% Increased Decreased

by 2.6% by 2.5%

ENN2.6% B 2.5%

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the
Group for the year ending 31 March 2018 are approximately
HK$2,088,000.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
5.4 years.

HREE—_ET— ) \F=ZA=+—HItHF
& AEEMAEEAEEIATEHAER
49/5 2,088,000 7T, ©

RERMEENIETFHFRRS A5 -
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RASENEER RURE
=8 (&)

16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16
Provision for Long Service Payments

(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBARETE(E)
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next RZE—tF=A=+—HHEAETEF
ten years on 31 March 2017: BEERKRETFHTEEREAB ST -
Between Between
Less than a 1-2 2-5 Next 5
year years years years
—F LR —ZmME —ERE HEH LS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FETT T
Defined benefit obligation REBNEE 9,774 17,004 36,897 63,973
Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a AEEFZAATEMNETEHREZER
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit b o REBAGTEIRHE—IBRTKE R
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the time 745 B K2 48 35 7 Bl B8k By 19 3657 B i 7 0 7
of leaving the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary FEABA o BB BIRRE H A 2.5% A
to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of funding sPEIMHER - A S B A A EZET S8R
the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BHRER - ZFrEIRASBHERIANER
interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk. % FINERR MR E RS RER o
(c) Provision for long service payments (0 RER%ESEE

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using
the projected unit credit method.
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EAKEENEBR RHIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
() Provision for long service payments () RHRBTEE (&)
(Continued)
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial TEREMBARRRNERZBEWNT

position is determined as follows:

2017 2016
—T—tF ZERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Liability in the consolidated mEBIARNZBE
statement of financial position 45,525 51,955
Re-measurement on plan liabilities SrEBEZEFE (6,012) 23,246
Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement TR a MBERATANER 2 BEZ SN
of financial position are as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FHNEEER 51,955 30,498
Current service cost BB RIS 3,006 2,298
Interest cost BB 504 382
Remeasurement of provision of KRG B E 2 EFTE
long service payments (6,012) 23,246
Benefits paid BHEF (3,928) (4,469)
End of the year FREER 45,525 51,955
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

() Provision for long service payments (9
(Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as

RASENEER RURE
=8 (&)

KRR &8 HE (&)

EHRABERRER BT

follows:

2017 2016
—T—tF ZERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Current service cost I8 RIFA AR 3,006 2,298
Interest cost F B A 504 382

Total, included in employee @5 EEREAEEERANFAXA
benefit expenses (Note 29) (FfF5E29) 3,510 2,680

Of the total charge, HK$3,510,000 (2016: HK$2,680,000) have
been included in administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate Ah3R =

Expected rate of future salary increases RN 2 FBHAE & =R

48 3% - 3,510,000 0 ( = & — %
£ : 2,680,000/ C) BIEEITHERNA -

PRERM 2 T2REMRT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+iF ZE—RF
1.4% p.a. 1.0% p.a.
B5F1.4% 541.0%
4.5% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
BF45% HF45%

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain
of HK$6,012,000 (2016: a loss of HK$23,246,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments

recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$43,934,000 (2016: a loss of HK$49,946,000).
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16

(@]

sre MR

VAR

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments
(Continued)

Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2018 after the offset the
accrued MPF account balance is approximately HK$2,924,000.

The weighted average duration of the long service payment
obligation is 6.4 years.

Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2017:

Less than a
year
—FHUR
HK$'000
FET

oh

RERGEEE

k>

Long Service Payment

obligation 2,924

16 EBARESEIEERRHARE
SRHME (E)

(0 ERHR%KeEE(E)
RIEHEEFRESRF &G - ~N5E
REBEZE T/ \F=ZA=+—HILFE
FEES TS 2 RERE S EEHERLD
452,924,000 87T °
RERSeE T2 MEFHFHAE6.4
fﬁ o
R-E—+F=A=+—HBZ2RHR®%
SEENRRTF2TERRNEE DT -

Between Between
1-2 2-5 Next 5
years years years
—ZWE —ERF FEH LS
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
5,551 13,444 20,818

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company's MPF scheme’s constituent funds.

REBLRBEL  HEHRBESEME
BEEERFMERE RIS ZBES
&% RAEARBRBEE AEEEA
Rt A RER - #FrEEBRNRARE]
BECHERDESRERRSTEER

(G
AR

o
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17 Deferred Income Tax 17 EEFIE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is BERAERHMITEF T ERBHIEE
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax ERBIEEEEAEE  REEREY
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same NE—B e BRERIBEERE
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate EENP] EAEEE - SRE MM R AR
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial THRBE(SELHEEEIEEES) WM
position: N
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Deferred income tax assets to be HE 12 18 A 12 U B )R AR T B
recovered after 12 months 26,325 29,433
Deferred income tax liabilities to be B 12 E A RENELERIBE&E
settled after 12 months (31,964) (28,038)
(5,639) 1,395
Movements in net deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets are as BEFRIB(BE) BEZZEHUOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year FHEEER 1,395 4,808
Deferred taxation charged to TEfR e Bam R AR 2 IEETIE
the consolidated income statement (Fff5E 26)
(Note 26) (7,132) (3,263)
Exchange differences PE i =5 98 (150)
End of the year FREE R (5,639) 1,395
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17 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 17 EERIE(E&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEECFRNEEHBEERABCE
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (R R — BT AVE R 2 AR EEAT)
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred income tax assets: BELEBIRERE

Decelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Provision and others Total
HEBETE B BEREM e
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

2t ZTRF ZB—tF ZTRF ZB—tF ZTRF ZB-tF ZTRF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET

Beginning of the year #1484 11,058 15,706 35,937 37,309 8,305 1,920 55,300 54,935
(Charged)/credited ~ 7EfR&EEmEN
to the consolidated (5t A) /&%

income statement (1,074) (4,648) 948 (1,372) (685) 6,535 (811) 515
Exchange differences [E X =48 - = - = 98 (150) 98 (150)
End of the year FREEH 9,984 11,058 36,885 35,937 7,718 8,305 54,587 55,300

- - ag. - AY N2 E .
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEBIEEE !

Accelerated tax

depreciation Intangible assets Total
MERBIEE BREE B
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF T RF ZE—tF “TRF —E-tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year FHEER 53,595 50,127 310 - 53,905 50,127
Charged/(credited) iR EERA
to the consolidated A/ (H08R)
income statement 6,433 3,468 (112) 310 6,321 3,778
End of the year FREH 60,028 53,595 198 310 60,226 53,905
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18

sre MR

VAR

Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 17 EERIE(E&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying REHIEEE DA EEBET SN RS
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits 38 AR 2R B FR 5 M) B 2R i L P A B 2 A
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2017, BEBR RZTE—tF=A=+—
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of A AX&E iﬁﬁﬁﬁ}%?‘é #7383,441,000
losses of approximately HK$383,441,000 (2016: HK$400,511,000). B (ZZF— 754 1 400,511,00078 7T )
Unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately HERELED HE E - £208,721,000
HK$208,721,000 (2016:HK$208,009,000) and HK$91,447,000 B r( = & — 78 F :208,009,0007%8
(2016: HK$137,640,000) will be expired up to year 2037 and 2021 JC) %91,447,0008 (=T — R F :
respectively, while the remaining balance can be carried forward 137,640,000 7T ) REERFBLIEE S IR
indefinitely. T FRIT—FER BTE
4 A PR B4
Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$11,705,000 (2016: 2R IR HR B A 3 Y BB X B P R ER Y
HK$11,034,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that —EENF-A—BETASERE &
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting F| 234,104,000 L ( = F — N F ¢
to HK$234,104,000 (2016: HK$220,687,000) of the Company’s 220,687,000 7t ) W51ﬂ'ﬂjf§TD%%' It
subsidiaries in the Mainland China earned after 1 January, 2008. KRR 11,705,000 L (= F —RF:
Such amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable 11,034,000 7T) RIRELEHRIBRE - A
future to the group companies outside of the Mainland China. e RN B R B 4e B A
ASMNERBEAT] ©
Trade Payables 18 EXEEMNIRIE
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: EEEMNRIENRESITOT
2017 2016
—B—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
0 - 30 days TE=1H 206,928 210,191
- 60 days =t+—=1H 2,617 1,788
— 90 days AT—ENTH 116 612
Over 90 days fapcy = 1,448 1,877
211,109 214,468
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18

19

Trade Payables (Continued) 18 ZEEENIRIE(H&)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the EEREMNEENER@MEN T BB
following currencies: & :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
HK dollar BIT 175,914 177,185
RMB AR 35,195 37,283
211,109 214,468
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values HREFRARERE  EEENERENER
due to their short maturities. HEAEEFREATE -
Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 19 HttEMAERERETER

Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK dollars and

Renminbi.

H A BROE R B B E B R
#o  TAREMEE - EAEAER
RS ERAT2HUETRARS
o

ARLEEBRAR -2017 F® 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=Np e e kR

20 Share Capital 20 BAE
2017 2016
—EF—+F ZE—RF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
share value share value
BRBEAE HE izt 1 B EfE
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FET Fhz F&T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of TR EAREE
HK$0.10 each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end FHEFREE R
of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
Beginning of the year FHEEER 583,561 58,356 581,616 58,162
Shares issued under share RIEHR 0 BT 2l
option scheme (Note 32) BT (FIRE32) 1,617 162 1,945 194
End of the year FRER 585,178 58,518 583,561 58,356
During the year, 1,617,000 shares (2016: 1,945,000 shares) of FR- F1,617,00008( = F — /X F:
HK$0.10 each were issued pursuant to the share option scheme of 1,945,000 f% ) ﬁfﬁﬂ&?%o 108 T2 &
the Company at average exercise price of approximately HK$15.92 MLA#I15.92 BT (ZF —75F : 14.95
(2016: HK$14.95). Total proceed less expenses amounting to B 2 FHTEERARRRZ KRN
approximately HK$25,740,000 (2016: HK$29,065,000) was used to REETEIET HAMERAER mz &
provide the Group with working capital. FA %9 425,740,000 . (=T — R F ¢
29,065,000/ 7T) © RIERAEERMHR
P}ES -
During the year, the Group purchased 700,046 (2016: 1,313,518 FR - ZIKEILLEH&L@i%EFJriU%é%
shares) of its own shares through the trustee of the share award ARAHMIE EEE 700,046 (=F
scheme from open market. The total amount paid to acquire the —/N%F 1,313,518k HE B KM ° 5t
shares was approximately HK$17,093,000 (2016: HK$36,740,000) BERRD M2 aS 54 /417,093,000
and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. As at 31 March BT (ZZ— /54 : 36,740,000 7T) -
2017, such shares were recorded as treasury shares of the Company EERRERZAMB R —tF=
and the Group as they were not yet vested. A=+—0 BARHOEAREE  ZFKR

MERARRR MAEEHEFBAR -
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21 Reserves 21 f#fE
Shares
Share- held for
Capital  Exchange based share  Statutory
redemption  translation compensation award reserve

Share reserve reserve Capital ~ Investment reserve scheme  EERME Contributed Revaluation  Retained
premium Ex e reserve reserve  SRHXSA  REAREHEY (notei) surplus reserve  earnings Total
REE  WERE  FERE  ERRRE RERR  NBEER  SERG (hi)  REBR  fERE  REEA aE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000

FET FET FET FET FET AT A1 T FET FET AT T

Balance as at RZF—7E

1 April 2016 MA-R&# 576,633 152,034 54,036 21,079 79232 51,675 (162,733) 24970 85,197 180 2597618 3479921
Proceeds from KR 2fiEn

shares issued 25,578 - - - - - - - - - - 25,578
Fair value gain on RLESHER

available-for-sale ZIHERR

financial assets - - - - 50,006 - - - - - - 50,006
Remeasurement of Eifit 8RS

retirement benefit EHAERRS

liabilties and provision hkeRE

for long senvice

payments = - - = - - - - - - 5810 5810
Transfer from statutory EHEiTERE

reserve - - - - - - - (7191) - - 791 -
Revaluation surplus priorto~ #47% « BiE

transfer of property, LGN

plant and equipment to REWEH

investment properties ZEfERS - - - - = = = = = T4757 - 4757
Employee share award EERAREHE

scheme - value of - BERKEE

employee senvices - - - = = 1373 = = - - - 11373
Release of share-based R g

compensation reserveto  EAARARA

share premium upon gl

exercse of shareoptions ~~ EARGEE 5153 = - - = (5,153) = = - - - -
Vesting of shares of share ~ fif @512l

award scheme HRHEE - = = = = (13721) 15,204 = = = (1.483) =
Exchange differences arising ~ EE/HEAR

from translation of ZERES

foreign subsidiaries - - Bs90) = = = = - - - - (3490)
Profit attributable to equity ~ ARFEREHA

holders of the Company ~~ FE/i7 - - - = = = = = - - B8 s03817
Purchase of share BEARA = = = = = = (17,093) = = = = (17,093)
Dividends e - - - - - - - = = - (670473 (670473)

Balance asat 31 March 2017 R=F—+%
=R=t-R&H 607,364 152,034 19,129 21,019 129,238 44174 (164,622) 24179 85,197 74937 2436150 3428859
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21 Reserves (Continued) 21 B (&)
Shares
Share- held for
Capital ~ Exchange based share  Statutory
redemption translation compensation award eserve
Share Teserve Teserve Capital ~ Investment reserve scheme  EEREE  Contrbuted  Revaluation Retained
premium B hE feserve esene  WRAZS &2 (notei) surplus fesenve  eamings Tota
RhEE EEEE FERE  ANBE  REGR OHEER BERD (W) ESESR  HERR  REEN hE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT TET & AT
Balance as at RZ2-RER
1 April 2015 A-Bgs 542,182 152,034 80,070 21,079 254,764 25,612 (133,441) 21,677 85,197 180 2564410 3,613,764
Proceeds from R
shares issued Wi+ s 28,871 - - - - - - - - - - 28,871
Fair value loss on AHESHEE
available-for-sale NATEER
financial assets - - - - (175,532) - - - - - - (175,532)
Remeasurement of ENitERNE
retirement benefit EHAERRS
liablities and provision fkedsE
for long senvice
payments - - - - - - - - - - (27.210) (27.210)
Employee share option EERAHETE
scheme - value of - EERHBEE
employee services - - - - - 62 - - - - - 62
Employee share award [EERH Rz 2l
scheme - value of -ESRBEE
employee services - - - - - 40,478 - - - - - 40478
Release of share-based RiTieRiAHE
compensation reserve to B A
share premium upon i
exercise of share options 5,580 - - - - (5,580) - - - - - -
Vesting of shares of
share award scheme - - - - - (8,897) 7448 - - - 1,449 -
Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - - - - 3,293 - - (3,293 -
Exchange differences arising
from translation of
foreign subsidaries ZEREE
and an associate - - (26,034) - - - - - - - - (26,034)
Profit attributable toequity AR FERE
holders of the Company FEfG A - - - - - - - - - - 517,982 517,982
Purchase of shares BERD - - - - - - (36,740) - = = = (36,740)
Dividends RE - - - - - - - - - - (455,720 (455,720)
Balance as at RZB-E
31 March 2016 =R=t-RE&# 576,633 152,034 54,036 21,079 79,232 51,675 (162,733) 24970 85,197 180 2597618 3479921
0) Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies (i) BIEPHEREERRER - F

are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit

to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’

registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,

upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against

accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the

companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a

minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
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22 Revenue 22 KA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Sales of food and beverages HERY NS 7,809,127 7,486,153
Rental income e U A 42,497 39,385
Management and service fee income BB MRS E WA 10,361 10,593
Franchise income BHIRERA 473 555
Sundry income I A 32,804 30,490
7,895,262 7,567,176
23 Other (Losses)/Gains, Net 23 HtiFE (E5E|) uF
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Fair value gain on financial BRAHETIABER
assets at fair value through L EREERN A HEER
profit or loss - 436
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERAFEIABRR
at fair value through profit or loss L eREERBE - (2)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERMEEE S RE ER
financial assets - 441
Dividend income from listed investments _Emi#% &% 24 A 12,246 12,246
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment REMENRFERF, (EE)
properties 400 (900)
Gain on disposal of a leasehold property HEMRE W~ % F - 25,097
Loss on disposal of other property, HEEMYIZE - BE REEFEE
plant and equipment, net (12,893) (17,983)
Impairment loss of property, M - B KRB REEER
plant and equipment (24,798) (21,330)
Gain on disposal of an associate B A Rl - 530
Government subsidy BT & B 1,897 2,181
(23,148) 716
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Expenses By Nature

24

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are

BHEE S

ENEH

BREHEXRARITRERNER DT

analysed as follows: LU
2017 2016
—E—+F —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of raw materials and JRM B} K FEM 8O AR AR

consumables used 2,419,927 2,360,204
Amortisation of leasehold land MG £ fo + s AR 2 BB

and land use rights 2,952 2,943
Amortisation of intangible assets I A EEH 743 580
Depreciation of property, Mm% BELRBIITE

plant and equipment 309,016 299,209
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZKEHERS

rented premises (B IEsk AT % 58,720,000 70

(including contingent rentals of —ZT—75%F 63,024,000 L))

HK$58,720,000

(2016: HK$63,024,000)) 930,101 866,927
Exchange (gains)/losses, net R Carl),BiE - FE (7) 8,517
Employee benefit expense BERAIFX

(excluding share-based (PEFEARD ST E)

compensation expenses) (FF7E29)

(Note 29) 2,444,498 2,152,547
Share-based compensation expenses LARstAD S22 (B2 29)

(Note 29) 11,373 40,540
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT N & 3,829 3,769
Electricity, water and gas BE  KEBRERE 380,774 390,026
Advertising and promotion expenses i KRS H 124,840 112,275
Provision for impairment on & EWERTE R E R (T 14)

trade receivables (Note 14) 565 285
Other expenses HAh & A 640,440 714,721

7,269,051 6,952,543
Representing: Rk
Cost of sales SHES AR 6,838,442 6,522,504
Administrative expenses 1THUE F 430,609 430,039
7,269,051 6,952,543
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Finance Income 25 B A
2017 2016
et SN BN
HK$000 HK$000
Fi#T FHT
Interest income M BYA 9,619 12,712
Income Tax Expense 26 FrISHEAR

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year

2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

AAAREREEREMHE_"F=5
FoFEMNEMDERE A ER
Fom Fl KL R 16.5% ( = F — N &F ¢
16.5% ) IR B - BINE A 2 B - A
RIBFAEFHERTORN K AR E RS
FBER 2 HITHERAR

REFEBERERAFTAZHABRLE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
T T
Current income tax: FVEARRIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BEMEH 92,131 100,919
— Overseas taxation — BN IE 9,999 4,810
Deferred income tax relating to EREEEEREDIR
the origination and HYIEER I8
reversal of temporary differences 7,132 3,263
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR (430) 1,231
108,832 110,223
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26 FRIEBEA (8

26 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

AEBEBRRTADE N < 518 B RE K
REB MR M E 2 BwmiE =8

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows: A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr

Profit before income tax BRI Al 612,682 628,083
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  #Z#i % 16.5% (ZZF—7"4F : 16.5%)

(2016: 16.5%) FTERTRIE 101,093 103,634
Effect of different taxation HABR TR 2 22

rates in other countries 4,208 (3,076)
Income not subject to taxation IR WA (9,885) (12,757)
Expenses not deductible TR HIBE A & A

for taxation purposes 10,220 12,582
Recognition of previously HREAARERCERER

unrecognised temporary difference (2,010) (6,422)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZTIE 6,148 15,380
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BEBE) BETR (430) 1,231
Others Hith (512) (349)
Taxation charge MBS 108,832 110,223
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27 Dividends 27 RE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Interim dividend, paid, of HK18 cents RIS - FARE R 187811l
(2016: HK18 cents) (ZZ—7]%F : 18781l)
per ordinary share 105,113 104,952
Final dividend, proposed, HK63 cents EEAHRE - BiREERe3B1L
(2016: HK63 cents) (ZZ—7"%F : 63/81)
per ordinary share 368,762 367,716
Special dividend, proposed, %Eiﬁ/“ﬂﬁ“ CgRRE R R
of Nil (2016: HK35 cents) —ZT X4 357810)
per ordinary share - 204,286
473,875 676,954
A final dividend of HK63 cents per ordinary share in respect of the BHE_T—tF= H ‘f’ HIEFEH
year ended 31 March 2017, amounting to total final dividends of A EEARREERE AR 63 B -
approximately HK$368,762,000 was proposed. Such final dividends # 5T 4 5368,762,000 ,’5573 It >R A A%
are subject to approval by the shareholders at the upcoming annual BAFRRRABRTHNRRAFEAS
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this FROEBRTAHEE - R BwKRIL AR
dividend payable. MZERMNRE -
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28 Earnings per Share

(@) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme.

28

(a)

FREFN

E=PIN
FRENGN RN R RIRER S AR
BENRAFASHTEBRR (PEEAR
RAS D RN BIRE B 2 BBARY) 2 N
RTIB HERGHE -

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Profit attributable to equity RAERIERE ARG EA (FHET)
holders of the Company (HK$'000) 503,827 517,982
Weighted average number of EBITERRZ TS (TEL)
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 578,030 577,114
Basic earnings per share BREARRN (BIRET)
(HK dollars per share) HK$0.87 HK$0.90
0.87 87T 0.9087T

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding
the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share
award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary
shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the
share options and shares under the share award scheme.

(b)

g
FREEENRBRIECETZER
BIniE P BB FAE RIT 2 BB (T
BREARBRER D KB EBEEO T
BAY) 2 PP BUHE L A M E
EPTE““HxPHHEE&HxTﬁﬁEDJ%JE’JHX
VAREERE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Profit attributable to equity RNARIRIEREE AR &R (FBT)
holders of the Company (HK$'000) 503,827 517,982
Weighted average number of BT E R 2 I8 (T A7)
ordinary shares in issue ("000) 578,030 577,114
Adjustment for share award i ip BT &l 2 SR & (FBhL)
scheme ("000) 1,053 728
Adjustment for share options ("000) & HARE 2 S ER (F ) 125 748
579,208 578,590
Diluted earnings per share BREERN (BRET)
(HK dollars per share) HK$0.87 HK$0.90
0.87 87T 0.9087T
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses

(@) Employee benefit expenses during the year

are as follows:

29

(a)

BEEAMAX

FRANEEENAZAT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances IE& - HHrek=E 2,300,068 2,006,293
Discretionary bonuses JEREFEAEAT 44,139 58,690
Pension costs BERAR T
— Defined contribution plans - REHREE 93,270 81,009
— Defined benefit plan (Note 16) - RERHEE (FiaE16) 3,511 3,875
— Long service payments (Note 16) - KRS S (FsE 16) 3,510 2,680
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(excluding share-based (TEEARG ML)
compensation expenses) 2,444,498 2,152,547
Share-based compensation expenses LARSAD 32 - B 11,373 40,540
Employee benefit expenses EERAIFX 2,455,871 2,193,087
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30 EEMNFENER

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M<
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March BE_T—tF=A=1T—HILFEN
2017 is set out below: BEEEMeHIWT

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of
director's

other services

in connection

with the
management

of the

affairs of

the Company

orits

Share-  subsidiaries
based undertaking

Salaries, Employer's compensation EEESHER
allowances contribution benefit ~ ALRHH
and benefits to pension (Note (i) MBLESHK
inkind Discretionary scheme HRH it 334
Fees  H& 28 bonuses ~ EEWEAK  Sub-total Zfife RtmuELs Total
Name of director £t #e  REWMEE  FERRA  SSEMEX it (&) REkzMe ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET TET TET AT TAT TAT

Non-executive directors FHHEE

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (@)~ ZEF%EE (@) 1,060 80 - 2 1,142 - - 1,142
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita (o) EERETL() 123 1,286 1,845 10 3,264 27 - 3491
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, BMEEEQ

Michael (c) 180 - - - 180 - - 180
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel — FF¥ZE5 4 180 - = = 180 = = 180
Independent non-executive  BETEE

directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ Z[E#5 %4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr i Kwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEE%4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S 4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Au'Siu Cheung, Albert  BRBII%E 300 - - - 300 - = 300
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, BEadsh

Chief Executive Officer () ~ BRHITE(d) 50 4210 6,000 18 10278 1197 - 11,475
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan (e) BEREEE () 50 1,560 793 18 2,421 275 - 2,696
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors

(a)

(Continued)

B FS R T ot

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March

2016 is set out below:

Name of director

Non-executive directors

Mr Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael (c)

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny,
Chief Executive Officer (a)

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita (b)

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (d)

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan (e)

ESli4

FHTEE
R

FHRERE
BUAHNTEE

BERE
PEERA
PR
BRALE

HiTEE
BRRRE
ERHITE )
B2ELL()
BEALE
BEARL()

Fees
HK$000
AT

1,060
180

300
300
300
300

50
50
50
170

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
inkind

He 28
REMEE
HK$000
FET

2418
2,665
2,760

303

Discretionary
bonuses
JEEERAL
HK$000
AT

9,321
880
1,190
63

30

(a)

Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
EEETLW
iufgw /\T)\
HKS'000
FET

EENFENER (8)
EEME (8)
HE_ZT—R"F-A=+—HILEFEN
ZEFMEHTIOT :
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the
affairs of
the Company
orits
Share-  subsidiaries
based  undertaking
compensation EEEFHEL
benefit  AAFAFGE
(Note (i) MELXZH
SRR iRtz
Sub-total TiMe EmREEH
INet (@) bz Me
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
1,060 - -
180 - -
300 - -
300 - -
300 - -
300 - -
11,860 - -
3613 492 -
4,018 2,086 -
537 - -
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300
300
300
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Notes:

()

(@

(d

The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny retired as Chief Executive Officer and was re-designated
from Executive Director to Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
1 April 2016. He was also elected by the Board as the Chairman of the Company
on the same day.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 9 September 2016.

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael retired as Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 April 2016.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan was re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 3 March 2016.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in

respect of their other services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking (2016:

Nil).

() Directors' termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early

termination of the appointment during the year (2016: Nil).
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(a)

(b)

(o)

EENANENER (F)

EE5ME (&)
FREEFHERIMETHS -

fi -

(@) AR Z B 2R At B X B =B R AR
i TeE /\%%Hxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁi EE 3
AR ENERERNREE R OHE

%ﬂ°

(a) BT NFOA—HE  EFXELRE
BRERTERY  YHARARRITERRE
RIFHTES - RITNEABEEZREER
RRRERE °

(b) Egs NENAANBRE  BEEXLTHAK
ARRMITEEHERIERTES -
(0 BT XFOA—HE  RUEKEERE
RUNCIESER: 773
(d) H-ZE—RFNA—HE BEALERES
ERARARIEFHIE °
(e) H-ZE-—RF=ZA=ZAL BRALEAR

RAFETEERHERRITES -

ERRAESEA
BRITEEREEAATNENBL
REEHMIR G2 H A PRSI  ( R AU
ZRKEIEN (ZF—RF  |) -

ESHBER
FAMERIENRLZERNESENE
/\ﬂE ﬂ)

1,5&( =



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30

(d)

(e)

(f)
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VAR

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Continued)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2016: Nil).

30

(d)

(e)

(f)

EENANENER (F)

BENEERBMEE=Tx
HHRE
BEREEEARDRAEFRURBM
AZEENAREFEANR(ZT—A
1 E) o

BEUES - 255X E
FLEREEEEAXBZAZE
;o BEERREMR S &R

FAMENES  ZFESFNXITEE
LAEERARBAZER  BEER R
Hitp32 5 (ZF—RF : ) °

EERRS  ZHREHINE
Rt

R B F NEHR - BT
AARTNEFEADASRALH &
AR5 BHRANTFEEXEERES
EREARER (2T —~E : ) -
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30 EENAZFER(E)

(Continued)
(9) Five highest paid individuals () EBERSHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEAEEARLEHRRTMALTERE
Group for the year include one (2016: three) directors whose —Z(ZEBE—RF: =ZR)EF - Efie
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The BRI 30() « HErmHE(ZZF—X
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2016: two) individual F:MB)ATREAFERK MW
during the year are as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+tF S AN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Basic salaries, gratuities K%~ #mBN S R A 28,
and other allowances 10,925 5,000
Discretionary bonuses JEREFEAEAT 6,914 1,389
Contributions to pension schemes RSB 72 36
Share-based compensation expenses LARAD - B < 2,049 2,599
19,960 9,024
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ez BRI
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T £ 3,500,000 77T = 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T % 4,000,000 77T 1 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 & T2 5,500,000 77T 3 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T 6,000,000 7 7T = 1
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30

(h)

(i)

(Continued)

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss (h)

of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid

individuals during the year.

Senior management’s emoluments by band (i)
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell

within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

2,000,001 #7CZ 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 7T 3,000,000 77T
3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 77T
3,500,001 % T 2 4,000,000 77T
5,000,001 7T % 5,500,000 770
5,500,001 87T £ 6,000,000 770

EENANENER (F)

FRECMEFRAESBHFMALE
BRI EAMAREE 2 2
SRR (8 -
SREEAETMNEE
BREBAR(TREES) 2HHEE
T

Number of individuals

AB

2017 2016
—2-tF —ERF
1 =

- 2

- 1

1 =

3 =
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERME
Cash Flows

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to  (a) BRBIAVGFEEEESE 2 FIR

net cash generated from operations SHER
2017 2016
—ZT—+F —ERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Profit before income tax FR A% B Al 612,682 628,083
Adjustments for: R
— Finance income - BrRsURA (9,619) (12,712)
— Depreciation of property, - BERERETE
plant and equipment 309,016 299,209
— Amortisation of leasehold land — ME 4 % 4 Hb s A 5
and land use rights 2,952 2,943
— Amortisation of intangible assets - m A 743 580
— Fair value (gain)/loss on investment - WEWMEZ NTECRF) B
properties (400) 900
— Fair value gain on financial - BAFEIABRE
assets at fair value through Z B ENEERN A B &R
profit or loss - (436)
— Loss on disposal of financial - HERATEIABZEK
assets at fair value through 2 e RMEEREE
profit or loss _ 2
— Gain on disposal of - HEHEESRMEERT
available-for-sales financial assets - (441)
— Net loss on disposal of other property, - HEEMYE - E MK 2 FEIE
plant and equipment 12,893 17,983
— Gain on disposal of - HEHEMEZHH
a leasehold property - (25,097)
— Gain on disposal of investment in - HEBERRIRE 2R
an associate - (530)
— Share-based compensation expenses  — BARZ(D S < B & 11,373 40,540
— Dividend income from listed - ERERSHA
investments (12,246) (12,246)
— Impairment loss of property, - M - BEREEOREEE
plant and equipment 24,798 21,330
— Share of profit of an associate - EREE S A RLEF - (22)
— Provision for impairment - EEEWARIE 2 REREE
on trade receivables 565 285
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax (a) FRFEAIGFHEEEEE 2 FR
to net cash generated from operations THIR (&)
(Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Operating profit before working MBNE & BB 2 = EE
capital changes 952,757 960,371
Changes in working capital: MENEEEE) -
— Inventories -7 (25,603) 13,730
— Prepayments and deposits - BRFIERIZE 7,325 (48,395)
— Trade and other receivables - R H 4 EURERTE (10,577) (1,860)
— Trade payables - EEEERIE (3,359) 2,186
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities — — Eth fE (<t BR1E )2 FE S+ & FB 33,676 (959)
— Retirement benefit liabilities and - B EINBERRARG2#E
provision for long service payments 966 (335)
Net cash generated from operations EEBEAZFHE 955,185 924,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

(b)

mERERERWE (&)

GERTREXRANEEY
% BERRERESHRER :

2017 2016
—EB—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net book amounts R FE 16,428 39,520
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, — HEW¥ « E&&EEZF (BE),&F
plant and equipment (12,893) 7,114
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE REEAT
plant and equipment 3,535 46,634
Representing (A
Cash received during the year (Note a) ~ ANFEIREHA (Hizta) 3,535 104,292

Note a: Cash received during the year ended 31 March 2016 included the balance of

proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment of HK$57,658,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Share Options and Share Award Scheme

Share Options

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24
September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company might grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Company had granted options to certain employees of the
Group (including executive directors of the Company) pursuant to
the 2003 Scheme. The 2003 Scheme expired on 24 September 2013
and the Group has stopped granting share options under the 2003
Scheme since then.
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing
of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board might grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
No share options had been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption up to 31 March 2017.

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise price in
relation to each option was determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, but in any event would not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day or (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant or (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company. The
exercisable period and the vesting period of the options were also
determined by the Board of Directors and the options shall expire
at the end of a 5-year period after the options become exercisable
save that such period shall not expire later than 10 years from the
date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the 2003 Scheme.

As at 31 March 2017, all outstanding options granted under the
2003 Scheme under which the weighted average fair value of
options granted was determined using the Binomial option pricing
model of HK$4.51 per option. The significant inputs into the model
were weighted average share price of HK$22.15 at the grant date,
exercise price shown below, volatility of 27%, dividend yield of
3.5%, an expected option life of eight years, and an annual risk-
free interest rate of 1.9%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 R HAERRGREE

(Continued) (%)
Share Options (Continued) i 10 HARE (48)
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2017 REBEE_ZT—+tF=A=+—HIF
are as follows: B ROEBEZEESERAT
Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
RiLRH il i3 ENgn 8 % RH ERGH
HKS
AT
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.268 583,500 - (583,500) - -
ZERLETAZR ZTEN\EZBZTAE_E-tEZATAA
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.748 707,500 - (707,500) - -
ZERLETAZR ZTEN\EZBZTAE_E-tEZATAA
2 October 2007 30 March 2009 to 1 October 2017 14.748 76,000 - (41,000) - 35,000
ZERLETAZR “EENFZAZTAE-E-tETA-A
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 2370 1,077,000 - (163,000) - 914,000

“2-FETATN\R E——FzRA=t-HE-E-E4-A=1H

28 October 2010 31 March 2012 to 27 October 2020 23170 136,000 - (122,000) - 14,000
“E-BETA-FNE B —EZP=t-RE-E3-TFTA-ttA

2,580,000 (1,617,000) - 963,000
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32

Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

B FS R T ot

Share Options (Continued)

Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2016

are as follows:

32 RIHIER R EREE S

(&)

fig 10 HARE (48)
REE_TE—R"F=ZA=Z+—HIHF
B ROHEZEEFERIT

Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
KA D i AR KT e s EREH
HKS
V78
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 October 2015 8.800 400,000 - (400,000) - -
“EERET-A-H ZERHE-A-AECT-RETAC TR
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 Qctober 2015 8.750 146,000 - (146,000) - -
i sl ZERHE-A-AEE-RETAST-H
1 November 2005 1 January 2008 to 31 October 2015 8.750 43,000 - (43,000) - -
“FEnET-A-A “EF\5-f-BE-F-RFtA=1-A
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.268 697,500 = (114,000) = 583,500
ZERLETAZR ZTEN\EZBZTAE_E-tEZATAA
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.748 1,259,500 - (544,000) (8,000) 707,500
ZERLETAZE 23T \F=R=TRAEE-tF-ATAH
2 October 2007 30 March 2009 to 1 October 2017 14.748 256,000 - (180,000) - 76,000
“FRETAZA TEENECACTAZCEETA-A
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22310 1,489,000 = (408,000) (4,000) 1,077,000
ZE-RETAZTNR ZE—E-A-t-REZECTE-AS1A
28 Qctober 2010 31 March 2012 to 27 October 2020 22310 342,000 - (110,000) (96,000) 136,000
ZBEETACTNE ZE-CE-AST-BECECRETACTHA
4,633,000 - (1,945,000) (108,000) 2,580,000

All the 963,000 outstanding options were exercisable as at 31 March
2017 (2016: 2,580,000). The related weighted average share price
at the time of exercise of the options during the year was HK$26.14
(2016: HK$26.04) per share.

R—_ZE—+tHF=ZA=+—8" 1A
963,000 17 M AR 1T Y AR 10 HABE AT T 17
£ (=ZF — 754 : 2,580,00017 ) » H i
B2 IR ER A FE IR (5 HARETT
B AEEK2614B T(—F —/NF
26.04787T) °
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 R HAERRGREE
(Continued) (%)
Share Award Scheme IR 10 22 Bt &
On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “Share Award R-ZT—=FN A _+tH ' ' xXRA=E
Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of = RBE LM — 1B (5 2R E & (TAR
the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2013 DB E]) - RS ABUE B HRE
Share Award Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years AN - 2013 A1 22 Bh T 178 B 540 B BA e
from the date of adoption. ST RFERERERERT]
During the year, 1,126,780 (2016: 961,031) restricted shares and F RN 1,126,780 ( — & — X F
731,103 (2016: 559,365) performance shares (Note c) were granted 961,031 % ) PR il 14 A 7 2 731,103 A%
to selected participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Details (ZZF—/R%F : 559,365 %) %ZIH%% ( W
of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded under the o) BRI G BN B T
Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are as HE REEZE-_T—+tF=H :‘f“* Ei
follows: I - RBR G REETEIE R R R
172 BRI AR SR AR AR f0 S B St 4n
T
Number of shares
RAEE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2016 during during during 2017
Date of grant pershare RZB-AF theyear  theyear  theyear M=Z—t%  Vesting period
RLBH ﬁﬂﬁ’&%fig mA-H ERRY  EREE AKX ZA=t-A BEH
HK
AT
(Note a)
(R a)
317712014 26.2 490,284 - (250,915) (35,240) 204,129 31 July 2015-31 July 2017
(Note b)
“T-HEtA=1—RE
“Z—+EB=1+-B (Kitb)
15/9/2014 238 3,034,703 - - (1,192,983) 1,841,720  July 2019 (Note ¢)
ZZ-NELA (Hid)
317712015 25.8 877,047 - (293,806) (95,251) 487,990 31 July 2016- 31 July 2018
(Note b)
T EtA=1-RE
—Z2-\ELA=1+-B (Kitb)
317712015 24.6 501,015 - - (58,350) 442,665 July 2019 (Note ¢)
ZZ-NELA (HiEd)
1/8/2016 24.8 - 1,126,780 - (61,679) 1,005,101 31 July 2017-31 July 2019
(Note b)
T tEtA=1—RE
“Z-AELR=1+-B (Kitb)
1/8/2016 24.3 - 731,103 - (6,906) 724,197 July 2019 (Note )
ZZ-NELA (Mo
4,903,049 1,857,883 (544,721)  (1,450,409) 4,765,802
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 R HAERRGREE

(Continued) (%)
Share Award Scheme (Continued) IR 1p 8 EhEt &l (4E)
Details of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded REBEE-ZT—R"F=ZA=+—HLHF
under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 March B RBERG ZEFEEREREITZ
2016 are as follows: BRI 1A%t R EERR D FEIF SR AT -
Number of shares
RIABE
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2015 during during during 2016
Date of grant pershare RZE—H% the year the year theyear MZZ—RFE  Vesting period
LA BRATE mA—A EREL FREE ERKM ZA=t-B HEH
HKS
AT
(Note a)
(M a)
317712014 26.2 895,062 - (308,459) (96,319) 490,284 31 July 2015-31 July 2017
(Note b)
il o e =
“Z—tEXA=1+-A (Ktb)
15/9/2014 238 3,753,681 - - (718,978) 3,034,703 July 2019 (Note ¢)
“T-nELA (M)
317712015 26.5 - 961,031 (3,245) (80,739) 877,047 31July2016-31 July 2018
(Note b)

“EFLAZ-AE
=2 J\EEAZ+—A (i)
(58,350) 501,015 July 2019 (Note c)
—F-NELA ik

31/7/2015 246 = 559,365

4,648,743 1,520,396 (311,704 (954,380) 4,903,049
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Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, the Group purchased 700,046 (2016: 1,313,518)
of its own shares through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
from open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
HK$17,093,000 (2016: HK$36,740,000) and has been deducted
from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2017. The shares
purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this Share Award
Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As at 31
March 2017, there were 5,941,501 treasury shares (2016: 5,786,176)
held through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.

Notes:

(@) The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price per share at
the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

(b) The awarded restricted shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33%
of the awarded shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of
the grant date and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on the third
anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business
date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.

(e The awarded performance shares are subject to attainment of performance targets
with reference to the Group’s performance.

(d) During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, both being

Directors of the Company, have participated in the Share Award Scheme. Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, participated in the Share Award Scheme
and their entitled shares were lapsed during the year following their re-designation
from Executive Director to Non-executive Director on 1 April 2016 and 9 September
2016 respectively.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 33 EERIARERE
Operating lease commitments (a) REMHERIE
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total future aggregate RZE—+tF=A=+—8 A5ER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as BRIEGE 2 R EHE MR AR RER 2
follows: XEMERIBARERAT -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Land and buildings T RAEF
— Not later than one year - —FAEH 831,103 701,259
— Later than one year and - BEZERFAEW
not later than five years 1,313,357 968,459
— Later than five years - AF&E® 254,686 63,995
2,399,146 1,733,713
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic FRAERERIBEELRES XTE
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rentals FERE =B BE L R R TR TF & B8 1M 7= 55
payable, if any, when turnover of individual restaurants exceeds a Rz fEEE (E) - ARBAITABE
pre-determined level as it is not possible to determine in advance the TASEEEZEEINER -
amount of such additional rentals.
Capital commitments (b) EXAEE
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had the following capital R-Z—+F=ZA=+—8 K&£EZ
commitments: BARAENAT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB i
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for EHERE L) 67,885 40,948
Authorised but not contracted for BHUEERERL 545,122 440,339
613,007 481,287
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34 Financial Guarantees 34 BBHER

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had given guarantees totaling RZZE—+F=A=+—H "  KRFIMA
approximately HK$415,000,000 (2016: HK$516,000,000) to MG BIREEEENE AR ZRITE
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted BEREERSE £49415,000,000 8L (==
to its subsidiaries. —75%F 1 516,000,000 77T) °

The Group’s bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits RZE—tF=A=+—80  A5EZ
amounting to approximately HK$108,711,000 to the landlords and FRBITERAEBNBE AR 2 EE N
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2017 AARBHREFRRERER  URKE2H
(2016: HK$104,125,000). #)7%108,711,0008 TT( Z T — X F :

104,125,000 & 7T) Z &% °

35 Future Operating Lease Arrangements 35 RERKLEHE2TH
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZZE—+tF=A=+—8 A5ER
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: BB o KEMHEMRARREK

RIEHEFRERMAT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF —TRF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not later than one year —F R 41,879 29,154
Later than one year and BE-EFAFANER

not later than five years 53,355 20,051

95,234 49,205
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36 Related Party Transactions

(@) The Group has the following significant
transactions with related parties during the
year:

Operating lease rentals
paid to a related party:
— Tinway Investments Limited (Note i)

RIRARE T S 2 EFEE A
RERER
— illycaffe SpA (MfEii)

Franchise and development fees
paid to a related party:
— illycaffe SpA (Note ii)

(i) Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita,
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited
(formerly known as Ardley Enterprises Limited), the trustee of a unit trust of which
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny being a beneficiary. Ms Lo, Mr Chan and Mr Lo are
Directors of the Company.

- RERERR AR (HEED)

36 BEHARS

IR 2 EEHERS

() FRAEEHEBEBRAIBUT 2
BARS
2017 2016
=T—tF —E-REF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T
2,388 2,388
423 547

(i) REREERAFHBEEL T - Bkt
EZHBAAR—BEM{EFE (BRI EE
EAS2EN) 2 Z5E A Ardley Enterprises (PTC)
Limited ( 31 7& Ardley Enterprises Limited) Fff &
F#EE - Bt BRELERBEEHAERR

RIESE -
(ii) illycaffe SpA holds 30% equity interests in Cafe de Espressamente illy (HK) Limited, (ii) illycaffe SpAfFA Café de Espressamente illy (HK)
a 70% owned subsidiary of the Group. Limited (AN B S 70% B A F) K
30% AR ANHE RS ©
The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the FiR G iR E B 5 el 26
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related AVERRGETT ©
parties.
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEAEME
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Salaries and allowances i K2R, 18,281 16,939
Fees e 100 320
Discretionary bonuses JEEEIEAL 14,138 13,581
Contributions to pension schemes RSB 126 184
Share-based compensation expense LARR D 2 RO Bl 3,733 6,281
36,378 37,305
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37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 AAQARMBERRERRHFEESE
Reserve Movement of the Company g
(@) Statement of financial position of the (a) ADRPHEARRE
Company
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
—s—+EF —E—RF
=A=+-—8 —A=+—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FAET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB A AR E 1,315,625 1,469,068
Current assets MENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary ~ FEURHIE R RIFIE 7,271 5,642
Other receivables H b pe Ut BR 18 431 1,150
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEIER 1,358 638
9,060 7,430
Total assets WEE 1,324,685 1,476,498
EQUITY B RE
Capital and reserves RABIIRERE A
attributable to FEAE AR AN I 1
the equity holders
of the Company
Share capital [i&N 58,518 58,356
Share premium A& R IE 37(b) 607,364 576,633
Shares held for share &0 B2 BT 835 E 2 KD
award scheme 37(b) (164,622) (162,733)
Other reserves E i 37(b) 290,675 298,176
Retained earnings IREB A 37(b) 532,280 704,236
Total equity RRfE 4 4E 1,324,215 1,474,668
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities mENEE
Other creditors and E b BRIE K ERT &
accrued liabilities 470 1,830
Total equity and liabilities feHE X & EERE 1,324,685 1,476,498
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(b)

Statement of Financial Position and

Reserve Movement of the Company

(Continued)

Reserve movement of the Company

(b)

B (&)

ADTHER

Shares
held for

Capital Share-based share award Contributed

37 ARRMBEARRR R S

redemption compensation scheme Surplus
Share reserve reserve 30 BERAES% Retained
premium EX  HUREBXM % mEta (note i) earnings Total
BRPRE WEREE HHEREE  BEZRO (B3ED REEF Ftol
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April 2016 AT —XF
mA—B&eR 576,633 152,034 51,675 (162,733) 94,467 704,236 1,416,312
Proceeds from shares issued E1TH% {7 2 FT{S 5% 25,578 - - - - - 25,578
Employee share award & 8 1 BERN T2
scheme — value of — EERBEE
employee services - - 11,373 - - - 11,373
Release of share-based R TRk Btk
compensation reserve AR XA
to share premium upon Bl BEA
exercise of share option BB 5,153 - (5,153) - - - -
Vesting of shares of share R {7 #2Eh =t &l
award scheme BD B - - (13,721) 15,204 - (1,483) -
Purchase of shares BRI - - - (17,093) - - (17,093)
Profit attributable to RRRIBHERA A
equity holders FEAE A
of the Company - - - - - 500,000 500,000
Dividends (i858 = = = = = (670,473) (670,473)
Balance as at AT —tF
31 March 2017 =A=t—RH#&#% 607,364 152,034 44,174 (164,622) 94,467 532,280 1,265,697
Balance as at 1 April 2015 R=Z— A%
mA— B &g 542,182 152,034 25,612 (133,441) 94,467 732,271 1,413,125
Proceeds from shares issued ~ Z1TH% {7 2 FT{S 5% 28,871 - - - - - 28,871
Employee share option 1B &R EARERT Sl
scheme — value of - EERBEE
employee services - - 62 - - - 62
Employee share award 1B B R EEy=t &
scheme — value of - EERBEE
employee services - - 40,478 - - - 40,478
Release of share-based H 7R Bt
compensation reserve AR AT E
to share premium upon e REEEA
exercise of share option B8 5,580 - (5,580) - - - -
Vesting of shares of share {7 &€&t 81&Y
award scheme f&in 858 = - (8,897) 7,448 - 1,449 -
Purchase of shares BER’RM - - - (36,740) - - (36,740)
Profit attributable to RATRRERE A
equity holders Jit=pingl
of the Company - - - - - 426,236 426,236
Dividends i858 = = = = = (455,720) (455,720)
Balance as at RZT—RF
31 March 2016 =A=+—HB#%&#% 576,633 152,034 51,675 (162,733) 94,467 704,236 1,416,312

AR
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37 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(i) Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group reorganisation made in prior years
and represented the difference between the value of investment in a subsidiary
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due
or (ji) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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Principal Investment Properties

T BIREV=E

Description
it

Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the 1 Floor,
Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16
Lai Wan Road, Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon

NEH R ATEINZEE10-165

BEERES1-17R N5 A K& C#ip

Shop F14 on the 1 Floor, Saddle Ridge Garden,
No. 6 Kam Ying Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin,
New Territories

AV HER LR EE LR —EF144

Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor,
Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and
173 Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

MALESILBE167 171 K173 K%
JKANET 47-51 SR ERRE — & 3 R EHE D

Shop A of Portion B on the Basement, Argyle Centre,

Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road and No. 65 Argyle Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon
JURERT A58 2B 688 5% S on B £ 47 65 SEAE A O
— R B BB A4S

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement, Argyle Centre,

Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road and No. 65 Argyle Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon
JLEERE BT PUE 688 5 M ar B Z A1 65 SR A L
—HAh & B 2B C &

Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
E/%E/& ‘lsfﬁ/iBEIEP/l:\_%Aﬁ

Lot number

1 BR A 1%

New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5086
¥ LBEAHBER 5086 5%

Sha Tin Town
Lot No. 352
Yb T HIER 352 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETHIER 223 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
BEMIER 1262 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JLBEHIER 1262 57

Inland Lot No. 8423
R ER 8423 5%

Type
BE

Shop
[EE

Shop
B

Shop
[EE

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Lease term
A

Medium-term

Lk

Medium-term

A

Medium-term

Lk

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=5
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMEHME

Consolidated Income Statements
For the five years ended 31 March 2017

mER@mRK
—tF=A=t-BLAEFE

(2T

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
iRl of 3 —ERF —E-RF —Z—mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FHT FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 7,895,262 7,567,176 7,355,738 6,826,254 6,394,089
Cost of sales HERA (6,838,442) (6,522,504) (6,332,590) (5,841,875) (5,485,896)
Gross profit EA 1,056,820 1,044,672 1,023,148 984,379 908,193
Other (losses)/gains, net Hi% (B518) /a5 Fl (23,148) 716 59,713 67,887 61,319
Administrative expenses THER (430,609) (430,039) (375,152) (308,465) (329,003)
Operating profit SR 603,063 615,349 707,709 743,801 640,509
Finance income p N 9,619 12,712 17,256 12,700 10,966
Share of profit/(loss) of associates JE(EHE SN RIEF,/ (B1E) - 22 - (4,243)
Share of loss of joint ventures ELAEARER - - (5,434) (3,958) (5.987)
Profit before income tax BRI AR A 612,682 628,083 719,531 752,543 641,245
Income tax expenses FIEHRER (108,832) (110,223) (117,051) (110,422) (100,282)
Profit for the year from REFECEEBH
continuing operations AERRF 503,850 517,860 602,480 642,121 540,963
Loss for the year from REBRIELEEB
discontinued operation KEEER - = (15,020) (60,041) -
Profit for the year AEFHF 503,850 517,860 587,460 582,080 540,963
Profit/(loss) attributable to:- EE%R, (BE) : -
Equity holders of the Company RPEREREA 503,827 517,982 586,773 581,196 539,963
Non-controlling interests JEEHI RS 23 (122) 687 884 1,000
503,850 517,860 587,460 582,080 540,963
Dividends iz 8 473,875 676,954 453,860 393,189 517,204
Basic earnings per share FRERET HK$0.87 HK$0.90 HK$1.02 HK$1.01 HK$0.94
0878 0.90/&7T 1.02787C 1.01787T 0.94787T
Diluted earnings per share BREEET HK$0.87 HK$0.90 HK$1.01 HK$1.00 HK$0.94
0.87 87 0.90/7T 01787T 1.00/87C 0.94787T
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMEHME

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position REMBARR K
As at 31 March 2017 R-FE—+EFE=A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E2-t& ZERF “E-0fF —E-ME —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights ME TR B 80,532 84,598 88,386 91,380 94,411
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB NERE 1,943,607 1,729,269 1,737,661 1,720,324 1,672,430
Investment properties REME 567,700 477,500 478,400 439,600 385,000
Intangible assets ERBE 4,621 5,500 2,132 48,417 111,579
Investments in associates REEERRIRE - = 1,195 1,190 11,780
Investments in joint ventures REERRIRE - - - 19,772 24.372
Deferred income tax assets BIEHIBAE 26,325 29,433 25,955 26,562 24,320
Available-for-sale financial assets EHESREE 229,621 179,615 355,147 522,516 451,087
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ JEREIB HIBREE 308,523 275,366 266,296 248,652 268,633
Financial assets at BRATEFINEGRR L
fair value through profit or loss TREE - - = 7,777 33,094
3,160,929 2,781,281 2,955,172 3,126,190 3,076,706
Current assets mENERE
Inventories FE 240,154 214,551 228,281 211,759 204,548
Trade and other receivables EE R E M EUERIE 97,271 87,259 143,342 79,660 147,671
Prepayments and deposits BNFE NGRS 116,327 156,459 123,215 106,921 124,966
Financial assets at BRAHESABERZ
fair value through profit or loss TREE - = 39,838 8,067 56,077
Current income tax recoverable ENH R B 70E 9,816 18,994 - - -
Bank deposits with maturity over HA={E A2 H B
three months FTER 22,296 - 15,428 31,010 31,076
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEERE 790,017 1,186,643 1,057,189 1,004,093 772,694
1,275,881 1,663,906 1,607,293 1,441,510 1,337,032
Total assets BEE 4,436,810 4,445,187 4,562,465 4,567,700 4,413,738
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMEHME

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRAER (&)

(Continued) R-ZE—+E=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2017
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —ERF —E-A1F —Z-|mF —T-=F
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity fRiE
Capital and reserve attributable RARIRERE A
to the equity holders of the Company AR (s
Share capital A 58,518 58,356 58,162 57,730 57,407
Other reserves H it 992,709 882,303 1,049,354 1,286,806 1,164,384
Retained earnings REB R 2,436,150 2,597,618 2,564,410 2,384,864 2,327,583
3,487,377 3,538,277 3,671,926 3,729,400 3,549,374
Non-controlling interests JEEH MR S 3,743 3,720 3,842 3,155 2,271
Total equity IRiEass 3,491,120 3,541,997 3,675,768 3,732,555 3,551,645
Liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities EXERIEEE 31,964 28,038 21,147 30,458 31,616
Provision for long service payments RERB S &E 45,525 51,955 30,498 22,850 19,680
Retirement benefit liabilities RINeBHEE 22,288 20,762 15,344 7,483 25,670
99,777 100,755 66,989 60,791 76,966
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables EEEERIA 211,109 214,468 212,282 208,844 179,103
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HE e ERIE R ETEH 609,109 575,433 577,555 534,867 563,216
Current income tax liabilities BVEFIR B E 25,695 12,534 29,871 30,643 47,808
845,913 802,435 819,708 774,354 785,127
Total liabilities BmafE 945,690 903,190 886,697 835,145 862,093
Total equity and liabilities PR 8BRS 4,436,810 4,445,187 4,562,465 4,567,700 4,413,738

200 Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2017



s/

www.cafedecoral.com
A

\



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights and Calendar
	Chairman's Message
	Business Highlights
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors' Report
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Income Statement – By Function of Expense
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Principal Investment Properties
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

